


As @ diversified, multinational techrnology company, PACCAR menuiactures heavy-
cuty, er- and ofi-road Class 8 (rucks seld around the weorld under the Keawertln,
Peterbilt, DAF and Foden nameplates. The compeany competes ia the Nosth Anerican
Class 8-7 measket with its medium-duty medels assembled in Neorth America and
solc urnder the Peterbill @nd Kenwerik nameplates. In addition, DAF menuiaciures
Class 68-7 trucks in the Netherlands and Belgium for sale througheout Burepe, the
Middle Bast anc Alrics and cisiributes Class 4-7 trucks in Burope manulfaeciured
by Leylend Trucks (UK). » PACCAR menuiceiures and mearkets industrial winches
uader the Breden, Gearmeatic and Carece nameplalies and competes in the truck
peris altermearket through its dealer netwerk. ° Flnence and Leasing subsidiaries
iacilitate the sale of PACCAR procducts in meay couniries worldwide. Signiliicant
company @ssets are empleyed in flncasial services aeliiviiies. » PACCAR
mainialns exceptionally high standeards of qualily feor @l of its produsiss they are
well-engineered, are highly custemized for specific appllcations and sall im the
premium segments of thelr markets, where they have @ repuiaiion for supesier

performance and pride of ewnership.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2001 - 2000

(millions except per share data)

Truck and Other Net Sales and Revenues $5,630.0 $7,440.8
Financial Services Revenue 458.8 479.1
Total Revenues 6,088.8 7,919.9
Net Income 173.6 441.8
Total Assets:

Truck and Other 3,155.4 3,156.7

Financial Services 4,758.5 5,114.2
Truck and Other Long-Term Debt 40.7 124.7
Financial Services Debt 3,426.2 3,803.9
Stockholders’ Equity 2,252.6 2,249.1

Per Common Share:

Net Income

Basic $ 227 $ 5.76
Diluted 2.26 5.73
Cash Dividends Declared 1.45 2.20
REVENUES NET INCOME STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
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PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

PACCAR achieved good results in 2001, due to superior vehicle quality. geographic

diversification and innovative implementation of technology in all facets of the

business. The depressed North American truck market was partiaily offset by a

strong European truck market. PACCAR delivered nearly 79.000 trucks and sold

$1 billion of aftermarket parts and services during the year. Net income of

$173.6 million and revenues of $6.1 billion were lower by 61 and 23 percent,

respectively, versus 2000. Dividends of $1.45 per share were declared during the

year, including a special dividend of $.25. PACCAR has increased its regular

quarterly dividend by 140 percent in the last six years.

PACCAR was honored as the Business of the Century
(1900-2000) by the Renton, Washington, Chamber
of Commerce. PACCAR was established in 1905 and
has had tens of thousands of employees working at
the Renton site through the years.

There will be challenges for the commercial
vehicle industry in 2002 due to the slowing global
economy. The Class 8 truck market in North
America was weak throughout 2001, as the
transportation industry was impacted by lower
freight tonnage, increased operating costs and a
glut of used trucks. Industry new truck orders fell
by 13 percent, to levels similar to 1990/91. The
European truck market was comparable to the strong
market of 2000, even as the region experienced slower
economic growth. In order to reduce excess
production capacity worldwide, the Foden (U.K.)
truck factory and the Seattle Kenworth plant were
permanently closed. Their products are being built
at Leyland and Kenworth Renton, respectively.

Many competitor truck OEMs were unprofitable
during the year, as they struggled with excessive
used truck inventories, which had precipitous
declines in value, exacerbated by ill-conceived

guaranteed buyback programs. On the other hand,

Kenworth, Peterbilt, DAF and Foden used trucks
continue to benefit from their industry-leading
value based on their superior quality. PACCAR’s
dealers are the strongest in the industry because
of their proactive truck-stocking initiatives, 24/7
customer call centers, computerized parts logistic
programs and proprietary PACCAR Financial and
PacLease services.

Even in this troubled market, PACCAR continued
to set the pace for financial performance for global
truck manufacturers. Return on beginning share-
holder equity (ROE) was 7.7 percent in 2001,
compared to the 20.9 percent earned in 2000. The
company’s 2001 after-tax return on sales (ROS) was
3.1 percent, versus 5.9 percent a year earlier.
INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE — PACCAR enhanced
its competitive structure by unveiling many new
products, opening 25 new dealership locations
worldwide and investing in its design and manufac-
turing processes. The company gained additional
success by vigorously incorporating new technologies
into its products and aftermarket initiatives such as
the preferred maintenance programs and customer

prospecting sales tools.




PACCAR’s financial and credit effectiveness was
strengthened as the benefits of technology invest-
ments were realized throughout the year. The use
of sophisticated credit analysis, online used vehicle
catalogs and updated data-transfer procedures
benefited customers worldwide.

SIX SIGMA — Six Sigma is integrated into all business
activities at PACCAR and has been introduced into
many of the company’s dealers and suppliers. Its
statistical methodology has been critical in the
development of new product designs and manu-
facturing processes, increased productivity and the
establishment of clearly defined quality standards.

Over 5,500 employees have been trained in Six
Sigma, and there are 500 active projects under way.
An important derivative of the program is Design for
Six Sigma (DFSS), used by engineering in product
concept, development and implementation.
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY — PACCAR continued
to make major steps in developing the competitive
advantages of a strong Information Technology
Division (ITD). PACCAR’s use of Information
Technology is centered on developing software
and hardware that will reduce manufacturing costs
and generate increased sales and profitability. Major
accomplishments during the year include refurbish-
ment of the ITD facility in Renton, the initiation of
the truck-technology laboratory, introduction of
new customer service application software and
successful implementation of the Evaluated Receipt
Settlement (ERS) program. In addition, all the
PACCAR manufacturing and parts-distribution
facilities have increased the use of radio frequency
(RF) capability to enhance operating efficiency.

Significant progress also was made in designing a
telematic framework linking truck drivers and their
dispatch offices. ITD focused on features including
GPS, route scheduling, service diagnostics and voice
activation utilizing applicable cellular technology.
ITD partnered with software suppliers to utilize XML
technology to facilitate complex data retrieval
throughout the company.

TRUCKS — The North American truck market suffered

from the effects of an oversupply of used trucks,

higher operating costs and lower freight volume.
U.S. and Canadian Class 8 retail sales were 158,000
for the year, down 34 percent from 2000. Over 4,200
trucking companies failed, a record for the industry.
Western Europe reached heavy-truck registrations of
245,000 units.

Class 6-7 retail sales in the U.S. and Canada
numbered 95,000, a 20 percent drop from the
previous year, and in Europe, the 6- to 15-tonne
market was about 86,000 units, 5 percent lower than
the previous year.

PACCAR’s Class 8 market share in North America
was lower, however, its market share in Europe
increased to an all-time high. PACCAR increased its
market share in the medium-duty truck market
worldwide as the company delivered over 15,600
medium-duty trucks in 2001.

Peterbilt earned the J.D. Power award for
customer satisfaction for its Class 6-7 medium-duty
conventional, the Model 330, This is the second time
in three years that Peterbilt has earned the award.
The Kenworth T300 won the award last year.

Peterbilt’s factory in Denton, Texas, installed a
facility-wide wireless communications infrastructure
for the input, tracking and reporting of logistics
information in real time. In addition, Peterbilt
inaugurated a new robotic paint system for clearcoat
application on the Model 387 and Model 379
conventional trucks.

Kenworth set another record last year as its T2000
won the annual Pikes Peak International Hill Climb.
This is the fourth year in which Kenworth has parti-
cipated in the prestigious event.

Kenworth introduced new technology features
in its vehicles such as curb-view cameras, night
vision and clutchless automated transmissions.
Kenworth also updated its T300 and launched a
special edition W900L with sparkling exterior and
interior refinements.

One of the highlights of 2001 was the celebration
of the five-year anniversary of the DAF acquisition.
The occasion was amplified by the announcement
that the DAF LF had earned the International Truck
of the Year 2002 award. This prestigious honor
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compiles the votes of the technical press and is given
to the vehicle that demonstrates advancement in the
efficient carriage of goods and represents new
standards for engineering design. The LF series is
targeted at the 6- to 18-tonne market and is powered
by the new PACCAR Euro 3 engine.

Foden increased its sales in 2001 due to the highly
successful Alpha range. Additionally, several dealers
opened new facilities throughout the UK. to
capitalize on customers’ enthusiastic reception of the
new Alpha XL vehicle. PACCAR continued to realize
ongoing synergies in its European companies in
product development, purchasing, computer system
infrastructure and financial services.

PACCAR Mexico (KENMEX) had a good year,
even though the Mexican economy experienced
limited growth. KENMEX completed major facility
enhancements, including a new air-conditioning
system for the factory and consolidation of its parts-
distribution warehouses. The W900 continued to
gain market share in Mexico as customers discovered
the operating advantages of this flagship product.

PACCAR Australia had a solid year in 2001, as the
Australian truck market remained the same as in
2000. Kenworth maintained its industry leadership,
while enhancing its strong dealer network.

Demand for PACCAR off-highway export products
in China, Russia and the Middle East improved in
2001. The increase in commodity prices stimulated
demand for trucks in some of PACCAR International’s
markets, such as oil service and mining.
AFTERMARKET TRUCK PARTS — PACCAR Parts had
another great year in 2001, their ninth consecutive
year of record profits. With sales of $1 billion, the
importance of this organization to PACCAR’s
success was recognized by the creation of a vice
president position with responsibility for global
parts operations.

The consolidation of PACCAR’s parts business
worldwide resulted in improved logistical efficiency,
simplified supplier interface and enabled compre-
hensive performance benchmarking between the
10 Distribution Centers (DCs). Over five million Class

8 trucks are operating in North America and Europe,

and the aging of these vehicles, complemented by the
increased number of Kenworth, Peterbilt and DAF
service facilities, provides a good platform for future
parts and service business.

Two of PACCAR Parts’ major technology initia-
tives, the Customer Call Centers and Managed Dealer
Inventory (MDI), set new performance standards, as
dealers and customers embraced the programs’
benefits in 2001. MDI is now installed at 250 dealers,
and over 1.3 million calls were handled by the
Call Centers during the year. MDI utilizes
proprietary software technology to determine parts-
replenishment schedules. These programs generate
tremendous operating advantages to the users, such
as enhanced cost control, 24-hour, 365-day-a-year
service and improved profitability.

FINANCIAL SERVICES — At year-end, the PACCAR
Financial Services (PFS) group of companies repre-
sented a portfolio of more than 109,000 trucks and
trailers, with total assets of over $4.7 billion. PACCAR
Financial Corp. (PFC) celebrated its 40th anniversary
in 2001. PACCAR Financial, as the primary source for
financing Peterbilt and Kenworth trucks, provided
funding for over 9,000 new PACCAR trucks in 2001.

PFC financial figures were impacted by higher
credit losses, repossessions and bankruptcies, as truck
operators faced a difficult operating environment.
PFC’s conservative approach enabled it to earn a
reasonable profit in a difficult market.

PFC benefited from new information-technology
initiatives that provided customers with faster
finance and insurance quotes, more responsive
credit-application reviews and improved loan-
documentation processing. During 2001, PACCAR
Financial Europe (PFE) was established with
operations in seven Western European countries.

PACCAR Leasing (PacLease) earned its eighth
consecutive year of record profits. The PacLease
fleet grew to more than 14,600 vehicles, as 16 percent
of the North American Class 8 market selected full-
service leasing for its equipment needs.

WINCHES — Overall demand for winches fell in 2001,
due to ongoing economic issues in major markets.

New products were developed for the North




American mobile crane market, which has remained
steady. To prepare for future demand for its product
ranges of Braden, Carco and Gearmatic winches,
PACCAR Winch strengthened its manufacturing
operations by adding multiple machine centers.

B LOOK AHEAD — The dedicated efforts of more
than 16,000 PACCAR employees enabled the
company to distinguish itself as a global leader in
five major elements of the automotive business:
superior product quality, unparalleled aftermarket
customer support, extensive financial services,
comprehensive dealer network strength and
innovative use of technology. The best financial
results in the industry — the only profitable major
commercial vehicle manufacturer in North America
— contributed toward increased shareholder equity
and an outstanding balance sheet. PACCAR has
positioned itself as the highest-quality and low-cost
manufacturer in the industry and has built a
business and technology framework several years
ahead of the competitors. It is pleasing to note that
shareholders recognize the value of consistent
profitability and steady regular dividend growth —
two operating characteristics that define PACCAR’s
business philosophy.

In North America, the current recession will
have a negative impact on the truck market in 2002.
However, the implementation of updated engine
emission standards in October 2002, which will
prompt more costly and less efficient engines, may
encourage some operators to pull forward their truck
purchases. This action would artificially increase

truck sales in the second and third quarters of 2002

and could deplete sales in the fourth quarter. Asa
result, current estimates for Class 8 trucks in North
America indicate that yearly industry sales could be
similar to 2001, and range from 130,000 to 150,000
units. This is one of the lowest levels of sales in the
last 10 years. Sales for Class 6-7 trucks are expected
to be between 85,000 and 95,000 vehicles. The
European heavy-duty truck market, which had a
strong year in 2001, could decline 15 to 25 percent,
with sales between 180,000 and 200,000 trucks, while
demand for medium trucks should range from
75,000 to 80,000 units, a 10 to 15 percent decrease
from the prior year.

Though PACCAR had a good year in 2001, with
several operating divisions achieving record results,
the outlook for 2002 appears difficult due to
tumultuous economic conditions. The company
has taken appropriate steps to adjust production
rates as well as structurally reduce costs throughout
the organization. The benefits of geographic
diversification, dedicated employees, quality
products, modern facilities, innovative IT systems
and a strong balance sheet, working in tandem with
the best distribution network in the industry, are
the fundamental elements that contribute toward
this vibrant, dynamic company. PACCAR has
established a consistent record of earnings through
all phases of the economic cycle, achieving annual
profits for 62 consecutive years. PACCAR is well
positioned and committed to maintaining the
profitable growth its shareholders expect, by
delivering the products and services that have

made it a leader in the markets it serves.

WP?#
MARK C. PIGOTT

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 25, 2002
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DAF TRUCKS

DAF celebrated its most successful year in history, attaining record sales,
profit and production levels. DAF substantially increased market share in the
over-15-tonne segment while retaining its share in the highly competitive 6- to

15-tonne segments.

Launched simultaneously, the new CF series — in the segment from 18- to 40-tonne GCW — and the LF series
6- to 18-tonne light line have solidified DAF’s market-leading position as a maker of premium-quality trucks
offering superior reliability, operating efficiency and driver comfort.

Characterized by the press as “the ultimate urban distribution truck,” the DAF LF was honored as the
International Truck of the Year 2002. This prestigious award compiles the votes of the technical press from 20
European countries and is given to the vehicle that best represents advancement in the efficient carriage of goods
and in engineering design. It is worth noting that the DAF CF
also was highly ranked by the judges. DAF’s 95XF was the
International Truck of the Year 1998. D )/7@ \ E

l

Engineered with one of the lightest curb weights in its |

class, the DAF LF series offers higher payload and resulting
profits in a wide variety of applications. In addition,
comfortable power-assisted steering, combined with a 53-degree wheel cut, produces a tight turning circle for
maximum maneuverability.

Underlining the family relationship with the new CF series and DAF’s flagship XF series, the LF bears a
modern aerodynamic exterior complemented by a luxurious, passenger car-like interior of superb fit and finish.
In addition to the day cab, customers can order a sleeper cab version with generous standard bunk and storage
compartments.

The new CF generation entered the market in 2001 to wide acclaim. One of the most extensively tested new
vehicles in PACCAR’s history, the CF redefines the concepts of space, handling, ride and driveability in the
medium- to heavy-duty market.

During 2001, DAF substantially grew and improved its already vast network of over 1,000 dealers and service
points, adding new dealerships throughout Europe. In the last two years, major investments were made in over 60
facilities, with 25 new sales, parts and service locations being added.

DAF received two more prestigious awards in 2001. The DAF 85 series was named Fleet Truck of the Year in
the U.K. for an unprecedented fourth time by the readers of Motor Transport magazine. Some 11,000 readers of
the leading German trucking magazines chose the DAF LF45 series as the best 7.5-tonne truck among the import

makes in the competitive German market.

The new lightweight DAF LF series - International Truck of the Year 2002 —
offers customers a significant payload advantage in a broad spectrum of
applications from urban and regional distribution to specialized vocations

such as construction and fire service.
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PETERBILT MOTORS COMPANY

Peterbilt reinforced its position as the “Class” of the industry during 2001 through
increased investment in products, manufacturing facilities and systems. The
Peterbilt nameplate continued to generate the highest resale value — and brand

loyalty commitment — in the industry.

J.D. Power and Associates’ 2001 study ranked Peterbilt as “Highest in Customer Satisfaction Among
Conventional Medium-Duty Trucks.” It is the second time in three years that Peterbilt has achieved the top
ranking, a strong performance driven by its popular Model 330. The study reviewed operating criteria such
as vehicle and drivetrain performance as well as design and styling. _

A stream of key product enhancements in 2001 reinforced Peterbilt’s industry-leading image as one of the
most innovative, technologically advanced and driver-satisfying Class 8 trucks available.

Peterbilt’s FLEX Air® tandem rear air suspension, for example, features a revolutionary new design that
weighs 400 pounds less — installed — than comparable air-suspension
systems. Exceptionally durable, the unique weight-efficient
structure produces more payload and potential profit for
customers plus a substantially improved ride for drivers.

The aerodynamic conventional Model 387 — with its

distinctive contemporary styling — has turned heads from the
beginning. This year, Peterbilt debuted a Custom Chrome Appearance

Package that adds a stainless-steel-clad aluminum bumper and chromed mirror housings as accents. A new
in-dash GPS-navigation system that provides drivers with turn-by-turn visual and audio route directions also
was introduced as an option for the Model 387.

Peterbilt was the first truck manufacturer in North America to offer a clutchless, two-pedal (accelerator and
brake) fully automated mechanical transmission. During the year, Peterbilt extended the option to all its heavy-
duty conventional models.

In another industry first, customers who order premium sleeper packages with Models 387 and 379 can now
obtain a factory-installed satellite digital radio system. This leading-edge technology enables the driver to enjoy

around-the-clock, commercial-free, digital-quality audio programming from coast to coast.

Peterbilt's sleek, contemporary Model 387, which debuted two years ago, has
become a favorite with fleets and owner/operators, who consider its distinctive
style an important part of their premium image. In 2001, Peterbilt introduced
a new stainless-steel-clad aluminum bumper on the truck and added chrome

accents to its long list of options for the vehicle.

].D. Power and Associates 2001 Medium-Duty Truck Customer Satisfaction Study™. Medium-Duty Truck defined as Gross Vehicle Weight Class 5, 6 or 7 truck. www.jdpower.com







EENWORTHE TRUCK COMPANY

Kenworth’s proud history of manufacturing premium-quality. technologically
advanced trucks that satisfy both owners and drivers was evident once again in
2001 as “The World’s Best” unveiled a host of superb product enhancements

designed to increase vehicle efficiency and driver comfort.

This year, Kenworth furthered its reputation as one of the most ergonomic, convenient and comfortable trucks
on the road by introducing contemporary new interiors for most models. The updated T600, T800, W900 and
C500 cabs feature wrap-around instrument panels with ergonomic switches and controls close at hand as well
as a dramatically improved heating and air-conditioning system (HVAC).

The T2000 60-inch Aerodyne®, especially popular with private fleets and for-hire operators because of its
fuel-efficient aerodynamics and superb driver amenities, was enhanced

|

stylistically. The new package includes 20 percent more storage capacity, a

wider, 42-inch liftable bunk, and an interior style reminiscent of the luxurious
T2000 75-inch Aerodyne model.

Drivers already regard Kenworth’s W900L long-nose conventional as the
industry’s most appealing traditional heavy-duty truck. A new Kenworth

Special Edition W900L builds on that heritage to offer drivers a show-class

custom vehicle. The Special Edition options incorporate a distinctive two-tone M M
exterior paint design, dazzling chrome, polished aluminum and stainless-steel
panels, and Kenworth’s distinctive Diamond VIT interior upholstery trim.
Kenworth updated its T300 medium-duty conventional with a new
ergonomic dash, higher-performance HVAC, and increased storage. Other v

additions to the Class 6-7 market include a tow-hook option and optional
hydraulic brakes for non-CDL operators.

Kenworth introduced several new technology features to its vehicles during the year. A curb-view camera
system, available on specific Class 8 sleeper models, provides the driver with a wide-angle view of the vehicle’s
right side during lane changes and tight turns. Clutchless, automated transmissions and complex reflector
headlamps — which substantially increase the amount and distribution of light on the road — are now
available on the T2000.

Kenworth’s strong dealer network grew to nearly 300 locations in the U.S. and Canada during 2001.
Kenworth continued to aggressively expand its Kenworth PremierCare® premium customer-support program.
Preventive maintenance contracts — introduced in 2001 — provide coverage for thousands of vehicles in

North America.

Kenworth's T800 is the ultimate workhorse — as much at home running freight
coast to coast as it is delivering material at a construction site. It packages
time-proven and advanced technologies in an extremely durable, lightweight

and maneuverable chassis design engineered to minimize operating costs.




KENWORTH AUSTRALTIA

Kenworth Australia is a leading producer of commercial vehicles custom
engineered for the unique requirements of a vast and diverse continent. Reflecting
this proud heritage, a Kenworth W900 was selected to represent the transportation

industry on a special series of Australian postage stamps.

In 2001, Kenworth Australia’s “Truck of the Future” — a highly popular concept vehicle based on the company’s
award-winning T604 prime mover — showcased a spectrum of innovations designed to ensure more efficient
truck performance. The high-tech ideas included collision-avoidance systems, infrared night-vision cameras,
in-cab video displays, satellite navigation (GPS) and a sophisticated fleet-management system. Multiplexed
electronic systems incorporated in the steering wheel and switch panels enhance operational capabilities. Digital
screen readouts, which replace conventional gauges and dials, deliver critical data on truck operation.

Kenworth Australia’s new T404S received an enthusiastic reception from customers. The vehicle combines
a light tare weight with high-performance, fuel-efficient engines packaged in a compact cab for a perfect fit in

a variety of freight-hauling applications.

In the exceptionally demanding operating environment of Australia, Kenworth trucks have established a reputation for

unmatched quality, value and reliability. This Kenworth T300 has proven especially effective in the country’s urban settings.




PACCAR MEXICO

PACCAR Mexico (KENMEX) continued to dominate the Mexican market during 2001,
with over 50 percent of all heavy-duty truck sales. A virtual icon for Mexico's
trucking industry, the Kenworth insignia represents the country’s strongest dealer

network. superior financial services and outstanding customer support.

During the year, KENMEX complemented its product quality image with the introduction of contemporary new
cab interiors along with higher-capacity HVAC systems for the popular W900, T600, T800 and T300 Kenworth
trucks. Other developments included a new antilock brake system, a high-performance 40,000-pound tandem
drive axle suitable for a wide range of applications, and a custom-engineered low-profile T800 Car Hauler
utilized throughout Mexico.

KENMEX extended its leadership for superior service after the sale by launching a 24-hour Customer Call
Center and toll-free hotline to support drivers with roadside assistance nationwide.

In addition, KENMEX installed a new cooling system in its assembly and fabrication facility, benefiting

employees, customers and suppliers who utilize the plant.
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For more than 40 years, Kenworth trucks — like this top-of-the-line W800 — have hauled more goods over Mexican

highways than any other brand, a legacy that has produced exceptional customer loyalty throughout the country.




LEYLAND TRUCKS

Leyland achieved record production levels in 2001 with the overwhelming
acceptance of new DAF and Foden trucks. The United Kingdom’s leading truck
maker delivered over 13,000 vehicles to customers throughout Europe while

maintaining exceptionally high quality standazrds.

With one of the most modern, flexible and efficient manufacturing plants in Europe, Leyland produces the
entire Foden product line as well as DAF 65 and 85 Series and the newly launched DAF LF range.

During the vear, Leyland introduced enhanced automated cab handling, electronic testing and Six Sigma
techniques, which expanded production capacity and enabled Leyland to increase build rates by 20 percent in
its 600,000-square-foot facility.

Leyland received well-deserved public recognition during the U.K.s Celebration of Innovation, a program
of events illustrating how companies can develop and exploit new ideas to achieve competitive advantage.
The Secretary of State for the Department of Trade and Industry commended Leyland for excellence in the
training and development of staff, use of information technology and the manner in which Leyland manages

complex manufacturing.

Renowned for its manufacturing excellence, Leyland expanded its production capacity substantially in 2001 to accommodate increased
demand for highly popular new DAF and Foden vehicles. These trucks, marketed throughout Europe, are suited for a wide variety of

urban applications.



FODEN TRUCKS

Foden, one of the U.K.'s most revered nameplates, increased sales and production
in 2001 by building on the impressive market success of its Alpha product line.
The launch of the new Alpha range, among the most efficient trucks on the road,

coincided with the introduction of Euro 3 emission standards.

Engineered for 18- to 65-tonne GCW, Foden’s Alpha vehicles offer many advanced features that enhance the
driveability, productivity and profitability of heavy-duty trucks. Alpha’s class-leading driver environment
attains luxury-car standards in the new design. The much larger cab houses a sculpted, contemporary interior,
luxurious sleeping quarters, 35 percent more storage capacity, and a raised-roof option that creates 27 inches
of additional headroom.

Underscoring Alpha’s versatility, the British Ministry of Defense (MoD) — following extensive field testing —

placed a major order for 6x6 military trucks based on the new cab and chassis design.

Foden's latest Alpha range sets an impressive new standard for comfort, productivity and efficiency in heavy-

duty trucks. The enhanced interior design is more ergonomic, spacious and luxurious than ever.




PACCAR INTERNATIONAL

PACCAR International is a leader in the design and manufacture of trucks for
specialized applications around the world. A stronger oilfield sector, coupled with
robust aftermarket parts sales, helped PACCAR International to post solid gains in

sales and profits during 2001.

Higher oil prices in 2001 generated increased interest in rugged and dependable PACCAR off-highway
trucks — such as the Kenworth Super 953 — in China, Russia and the Middle East. This demand generally
offset economic weakness in Latin America and Asia.

While a firm U.S. dollar subdued sales of the company’s North American on-highway products for global
markets, DAF and Foden trucks increased sales in several countries due to their excellent over-the-road and
heavy-hauling capabilities.

On the distribution side, PACCAR International is adding the DAF product line to existing dealerships in
key targeted markets. The division also introduced updated PACCAR electronic and Web-based diagnostic

tools to its worldwide network, enhancing dealer communications, efficiency and customer service.

PACCAR International utilizes PACCAR manufacturing plants and the expertise of its global dealers to serve

PACCAR Intemational}  the transportation requirements of customers worldwide. This rugged Kenworth C500 off-highway dump

truck was specially designed for the harsh operating conditions experienced in Russia.




AFTERMAREKET TRUCK PARTS

PACCAR Parts celebrated its ninth consecutive year of record sales and profits due
to an increased truck population, more dealer outlets and new customer logistic
initiatives. The division shipped nine million order lines, satisfying customer needs

for all makes of medium- and heavy-duty trucks.

A Kenworth, Peterbilt or DAF truck contains almost 8,500 separate parts and components. This year, PACCAR
Parts introduced a Web-enabled version of its popular electronic parts catalog, providing dealer personnel with
immediate access to comprehensive and current information on every chassis.

PACCAR Customer Call Centers respond to over one million telephone calls annually and offer 24/7 support
to drivers throughout North America and Europe. In 2001, the Call Centers inaugurated a sophisticated Web-
based fleet maintenance package to help drivers predict service-due schedules, track each truck’s maintenance
history and facilitate vehicle diagnostic analyses.

Managed Dealer Inventory (MDI), PACCAR’s highly advanced electronic dealer parts-replenishment system,
grew to serve more than 250 dealer locations in North America and Europe. The division’s customer parts

management solution for dealers now serves over 800 fleet-maintenance facilities.

PACCAR Parts’ global aftermarket operation utilizes a network of distribution centers with highly sophisticated systems — like this

conveyor for small-parts retrieval — to supply 1,700 Kenworth, Peterbilt and DAF dealers with parts for all makes of medium- and

heavy-duty trucks.




PACCAR FINANCIAL SERVICES

PACCAR Financial Corp. (PFC) celebrated its 40th anniversary as the primary
lender for Kenworth and Peterbilt trucks. With over 109.000 units in their portfolios,
PACCAR’s Financial Services Companies have assets that exceed $4 billion. PACCAR

Financial Europe (PFE) was launched in 2001 to finance DAF and Foden vehicles.

The difficult truck market in North America caused a record number of fleet bankruptcies and impacted PFC’s
financial performance. PFC complements PACCAR’s extensive dealer network by providing customers with a full
range of competitive financial products — throughout the business cycle.

PACCAR expanded its financial services business with the formation of PACCAR Financial Europe to support
the sale of DAF and Foden trucks. This initiative begins to establish PFE as one of the finance leaders in Europe
for commercial vehicles. PFE has offices in The Netherlands, Great Britain, Germany, Belgium, Italy, Spain
and France.

In 2001, PFC enhanced customer service by launching a Web-enabled version of its credit, sales and quotation

software, which allows dealers to conduct an entire transaction — from credit application to contract funding —

electronically.

pAwR PACCAR Financial, with its full line of creative, flexible finance products and value-added services, remains
the leading lender for Kenworth and Peterbilt trucks — consistently supporting sales in every phase of the

[FH NANCHAH— business cycle.




PACCAR LEASING COMPANY

PACCAR Leasing. one of the largest full-service truck rental and leasing networks in
North America, registered its eighth consecutive year of record profits in 2001. The
PacLease fleet expanded to 14,600 Peterbilt and Kenworth trucks — with over 900

leased vehicles serving Mexico.

In 2001, nearly 20 percent of all Class 6, 7 and 8 vehicles produced were delivered to the leasing industry, as
customers focused capital resources on core businesses and outsourced transport services.

Kenworth’s and Peterbilt’s strong residual values and lower operating expenses, as well as continued
consolidation in the leasing industry, contributed to PacLease’s solid performance.

National accounts, especially, understand that Paclease offers unmatched competitive advantages: image-
enhancing, premium-quality PACCAR products custom built for specific customer needs; a system of responsive,
locally owned franchises; and a breadth of value-added transportation and logistic services. Approximately

50 percent of PacLease customers in 2001 were national companies that require transportation support

throughout North America.

PACCAR's increasing success in the medium-duty market is reflected in the growing number of Class 6-7 trucks, such as
the Peterbilt 330 and this Kenworth T300, in the PacLease fleet. Today, the PacLease network is comprised of 175 locally

owned franchise locations throughout North America.




PACCAR TECHNICAL CENTERS

World-class technical centers in The Netherlands and Washington State reflect
PACCAR's intense commitment to develop high-quality, innovative products for a
myriad of customer applications. These facilities greatly reduce time to market

by employing sophisticated analysis tools.

This year, the U.S. technical center helped to conceive and validate Peterbilt’s new FLEX Air tandem air-
suspension system — revolutionary for its lightweight design and superior ride. The PACCAR Technical Center
also contributed to the development of a new proprietary cab harness electrical tester utilized at all PACCAR
North American factories.

The European technical center played a key role in the development, rigorous testing and evaluation of DAF’s
new CF and LF series prior to their introduction this year. The center also was instrumental in advancing the
development of PACCAR’s Euro 3 engine platform.

Increased use of predictive technologies has accelerated new product development. High-speed computers

simulate many laboratory and track tests, speeding analysis by as much as 10 times faster than on-road evaluation.

Working in concert with PACCAR'’s truck divisions {rom the early stages of truck design through product testing, the technical centers

ensure high reliability in all vehicle applications. In 2001, PACCAR Technical Center added this Front Frame Simulator — a computer-

controlled system that simulates real-world loads on front chassis components — to its advanced development toolkit.




PACCAR WINCH

The Winch Division is the foremost full-line manufacturer of industrial winches in
the world. Recognized for innovation, engineering excellence and dependability.
Braden recovery winches, hoists and drives, Gearmatic planetary hoists and Carco

tractor winches occupy market-leading positions in a multitude of industries.

Growth in sales to oil and gas exploration industries offset declines in crane and construction markets, resulting
in sales volumes and profits comparable to 2000 for the Winch Division.
New for 2001, the Braden CH210 planetary hoist — designed for the mobile crane industry — delivers
15 percent more hydraulic horsepower than its predecessor, increasing line-pull capacity by 3,000 pounds and
operating speed by 100 feet per minute. A new Braden family of swing drives in the 20,000 to 225,000 inch pound
torque range now allows winch customers to source hoist and swing drive components from PACCAR Winch.
PACCAR Winch also introduced a Carco-designed 40,000-pound line pull hydrostatically driven winch for
low-horsepower crawler tractors. The first of its kind in the industry, it offers variable speed and precise

operating control — significant advantages in logging, oilfield and construction markets.

Known throughout the world for exceptional product quality, the PACCAR Winch Division serves a

pAwR WINCH diversified customer base with a full line of market-leading winches, hoists and drives under the

Braden, Carco and Gearmatic nameplates.




FINANCIAL CHARTS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

(tables in millions, except per share data)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

2001 2000 1999
Net sales and revenues:
Truckand
Other $5,630.0 $7,440.8 $8,648.2
Financial '
Services 458.8 479.1 372.8

$6,088.8 $7,919.9 $9,021.0
Income before taxes:

Truck and
Other $ 185.0 $ 553.8 $ 774.2
- Financial
Services 35.0 76.4 77.8
Gain on sale .
of subsidiary ' 33.2
Investment income 35.3 34.9 38.0
Income taxes (81.7) (223.3) (339.6)
Net income $ 173.6 $ 4418 § 583.6
Diluted earnings :
per share $ 226 $ 573 § 7.4l
Overview:

PACCAR is a multinational company whose principal
businesses include the design, manufacture and
distribution of high-quality, light-, medium- and
heavy-duty commercial trucks and related aftermarket
parts. A portion of the Company’s revenues and
income is also derived from the financing and leasing
of its trucks and related equipment. The Company
also manufactires and markets industrial winches.
Heavy-duty truck retail sales in the U.S. and Canada
were 34% lower than in 2000 as a result of the difficult
market conditions for truck operators. As the general
economy entered a recession, freight tonnage contin-
ued its decline which began in the second haif of 2000.
Although fuel prices were lower toward the end of
2001, for most of the year they were at high levels. In
addition, insurance premiums for truck operators
increased significantly. Another key factor depressing
new truck sales was an excessive number of used trucks
in the market. ‘

In Europe, PACCAR’s other major market,
truck unit sales increased approximately 4% despite
economic weakening in some European markets. The
sales improvement resulted in an increase in heavy-
duty market share for PACCAR’s DAF truck brand
from 10% to over 11%.

PACCAR’s net income in 2001 was $173.6 million,
or $2.26 per diluted share, on revenues of $6.1 billion.
This compares to 2000 net income of $441.8 million,
or $5.73 per diluted share, on revenues of $7.9 billion.
Revenues and net income declined in 2001 due to
lower truck sales and margins in the U.S. and Canada.

Profits in PACCAR’s European operations were
comparable to 2000. Higher sales and lower operating
expenses were offset by the effects of lower sales prices
associated with competitive pricing pressures and
lower margin sales to large fleet customers.

The Company continued to achieve cost reductions
throughout the year. Selling, general and administra-
tive expenses (SG&A) were reduced to $375.9 million
in 2001 from $395.6. million in 2000. As a percent of
sales, SG&A increased to 6.7% in 2001 versus 5.3% in
2000 due to lower sales volume.

Financial Services revenues decreased 4% to
$458.8 million from 2000 due to lower earning asset
balances and reduced interest rates. Financial Services
income before taxes declined to $35.0 million com-
pared to $76.4 million in 2000 due to higher credit
losses in the U.S. finance subsidiary as truck fleets
experienced record bankruptcies during the year.

Investment income in 2001 of $35.3 million was
comparable to the prior year as lower interest rates in
2001 dampened income by an amount similar to the
$10.0 million pretax write-off in 2000 of PACCAR’s
investment in an e-commerce company.

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




Truck

PACCAR’s truck segment, which includes the
manufacture and distribution of trucks and related
aftermarket parts, accounted for 92% of revenues in
2001 and 93% of revenues in 2000 and 1999. In
North America, trucks are sold under the Kenworth
and Peterbilt nameplates and, in Europe, under the
DAF and Foden nameplates.

2001 2000 1999

Truck net sales

and revenues $5,573.6 $7,382.4 $8,412.9

Truck income
before taxes $ 189.1 § 5128 $ 7595

2001 Compared to 2000:

PACCAR’s worldwide truck sales and revenues declined
25% to $5.6 billion in 2001 due to lower sales volume in
North America. Worldwide truck deliveries decreased
23% t0.78,700 units. Sales in the strong European truck
market were up slightly compared to 2000. Despite the
lower worldwide sales, PACCAR maintained its leader-
ship position as one of the largest producers of
medium- and heavy-duty trucks in the world.

Truck income before taxes was $189.1 million,

63% lower than the $512.8 million earned in 2000.
Truck gross margins declined due to competitive
pricing pressures and the impact of lower production
volumes in the U.S. and Canada.

Registrations of new heavy-duty trucks in the U.S.
and Canada were 178,000 in 2001, a 32% decline from
the 2000 level of 260,000, the second highest in history.
PACCAR’s heavy-duty truck unit sales decreased ’
approximately 45% from 2000 levels and market share
declined to 19.5% from 21% in 2000. PACCAR’s 2001
market share in the U.S. and Canada was affected by
competitors’ actions to reduce their excess new truck
inventories. Although a relatively small portion of sales
in 2001, PACCAR’s medium-duty truck continued its
share growth in the U.S. and Canada.

" The European heavy-duty truck market decreased
3% in 2001 to 245,000 units. DAF, with a renewed
product line as a result of the introduction of the new
CF model, increased its share of the European heavy-
duty market in 2001 to over 11%. Market share also
improved slightly to 7.7% in the light truck market
with the introduction of a new LF model which earned

the 2002 International Truck of the Year award. Sales in
Europe represented approximately 37% of PACCAR’s
total truck sales revenue in 2001 as compared to 29%
in 2000.

PACCAR also has a significant market presence in
Mexico and Australia. The sales and profits from these
countries combined were lower by 19% and 27%,
respectively, in 2001 compared to 2000. In 2001, these
markets represented approximately 10% of sales and
17% of profits compared to less than 10% of the truck
segment sales and profits in 2000.

Sales of trucks to export customers in South
America, Africa and Asia continued to be impacted by
weak economic conditions. Export sales and profits in
2001 were comparable to 2000 and represent a minor
portion of PACCAR’s overall results.

Despite the weak U.S. and Canada truck market,
the Company’s worldwide aftermarket parts revenues
in 2001 increased slightly compared to 2000. Parts
operations in North America and Europe benefited
from growth in the number of trucks in service as well
as customer service initiatives and marketing programs
designed to promote parts sales.

Reflecting the difficult conditions in the medium-
and heavy-duty truck markets in 2001 and the
completion of some significant product development
programs in 2000, a lower level of spending was
devoted to product development, business process
improvements and systems enhancements. Research
and development expense in 2001 amounted to $74.0
million, a 28% decrease from 2000.

2000 Compared to 1999:

PACCAR’s worldwide truck sales declined 12% to

$7.4 billion in 2000 due to lower sales volume and the
impact of the decline in the euro in relation to the U.S.
dollar. Truck income before taxes was $512.8 million, a
32% decrease from the $759.5 million earned in 1999.

Truck gross margins declined in 2000 from 1999
as the weaker market conditions led to lower produc-
tion rates and competitive pricing pressure in the
U.S. and Canada, partially offset by aggressive cost
reduction programs. )

In the U.S. and Canada, registrations of new heavy-
duty trucks were 260,000 in 2000, 2 7% decline from
the 1999 record level of 280,000. PACCAR’s market
share was 21%, a slight increase from 1999.




The European heavy-duty truck market increased
4% in 2000 to 252,000 units. DAF also slightly
increased its share of the European heavy-duty market
in 2000 to just under 10%. Despite the increase in
truck deliveries, truck sales revenue in 2000 was
comparable to 1999 levels due to the decline in the
value of the euro relative to the dollar. Sales in Europe
represented approximately 29% of PACCAR’s total
truck sales revenue in 2000 compared to 25% in 1999.

PACCAR continued its growth in the medium-
duty truck market, increasing market share a full
percent in the U.S. and Canada as well as in Western
Europe in 2000.

The Company’s worldwide aftermarket parts
revenues in 2000 were comparable to 1999. The posi- .
tive effect of higher parts volume in Europe was offset
by the weaker euro.

Research and development expense in 2000
amounted to $102.5 million, an 18% decrease
from 1999.

Truck Outlock

In North America, market forecasts for 2002
indicate that sales of medium- and heavy-duty
trucks will remain near the levels of 2001.
Economic conditions and the excess used truck
inventory situation will need to improve before the
demand for new trucks increases appreciably. On
October 1, 2002, new engine emission requirements
will increase the cost and reduce the fuel efficiency
of heavy-duty engines. As a result, there may be
higher sales in the second and third quarter of 2002
if truck operators attempt to reduce the impact of
the transition to the new emission standards by
pulling truck purchases forward.

In Europe, the heavy-duty truck market is
expected to decline by 15% to 25% and the light
truck market is expected to decline by 10% due
to slower economic growth in the eurozone.
Financial Services )

The Financial Services segment, which includes
wholly owned subsidiaries in the United States,
Canada, Mexico, Australia and Europe, derives its
earnings primarily from financing or leasing
PACCAR products.

~ PACCAR has a 49% equity ownership in DAF
Financial Services in Europe, which provides
finance and leasing products to DAF customers in
Europe. In 2001, the Company began to phase out
this joint venture concurrent with the start-up of
financial operations of its wholly owned sub51d1ary
PACCAR Financial Europe.

The finance company joint venture ceased 25
writing new business and had assets of $715 million
at December 31, 2001. The $32 million investment

“in this joint venture is recorded under the equity

method and is included in Financial Services
other assets.

2001 2000 1999

Financial Services:
Average carning
assets $4,725.0 $4,878.3  $3,999.7

Revenues $ 458.8 $ 479.1 $ 372.8
Income before
taxes $ 350 §$§ 764 $ 77.8

2001 Compared to 2000:
Financial Services revenues declined 4% to
$458.8 million due to lower earning assets and lower
interest rates. Average earning assets decreased 3%
due to lower new loan volume in the U.S. and
Canadian markets, partially offset by increased new
loan volume in the European market. PACCAR -
Financial Europe commenced operations in the
middle of 2001, resulting in growth in the European
earning asset base.

Income before taxes declined 54% to
$35.0 million from $76.4 million in 2000. Although
finance margins increased slightly in 2001, the
improvement was more than offset by higher
operating expenses associated with the start-up
of the finance company in Europe and, more
significantly, by sharply higher credit losses in
the United States. Credit losses were $86.4 million
in 2001 compared to $34.5 million in 2000. The U.S.
finance company experienced increased levels of
past dues and repossessions as well as a higher loss
per repossession.

2000 Compared to 1999: :

Financial Services income before taxes of

$76.4 million was 2% lower than in 1999. Revenues
increased 29% to $479.1 million in 2000 due to
portfolio growth in foreign and domestic finance
operations and higher interest rates. Average earn-
ing assets increased 22% to $4.9 billion in 2000 due
to high lending volume in 1999 and the first half of
2000. The increase in revenues was offset by higher
interest costs and higher credit losses, primarily

in the U.S. finance company.
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Financial Services Outlook
The U.S. finance company, representing approxi-
mately 65% of Financial Services’ earning assets, is
expected to continue to experience significant
credit losses. Even though fuel costs have abated
recently, weakness in truck freight volume and
higher insurance costs have continued to put
pressure on the profit margins of truck operators.
In the U.S., a record number of trucking companies
have filed bankruptcy and many other trucking
companies are financially weak. In view of these
conditions, the Company’s management has
adjusted credit policies to reflect the more difficult
market. Truck production in 2002 is expected to
continue at levels similar to 2001, which will likely
result in earning assets declining in the U.S.
PACCAR Financial Europe will have its first
full year of operation in 2002. Even though truck
production in Europe is expected to decline from
2001 levels, PACCAR Financial Europe’s asset base
is expected to grow during the year.

Other Businesses

Included in Truck and Other is the Company’s
winch manufacturing business and, prior to its sale
in October 1999, a retail auto parts operation. Sales
from these other businesses together represent less
than 3% of net sales for 2001, 2000 and 1999.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES:

2001 2000 1999
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 655.2 $536.7 $ 528.4
Marketable
securities 406.9 394.7 530.7

$1,062.1 $931.4 $1,059.1

The Company’s cash and marketable securities
totaled $1,062.1 million at December 31, 2001,
$130.7 million more than 2000. Cash inflows
from operations of $626 million were partially
offset by dividends, capital expenditures, acquisi-
tions of equipment under operating leases, debt
repayment and cash utilized for the Financial
Services operations.

In 2000, the Company repurchased 2.4 million
shares of its common stock for $105.8 million.
There were no share repurchases in 2001,

In July 2001, the Company completed a $1.9
billion multi-year bank facility to provide liquidity
to its commercial paper program. The Company’s
strong liquidity position and investment grade
credit rating continue to provide financial stability
and ready access to capital markets at competitive
interest rates.

Truck and Other .

The Company provides funding for working capital,
capital expenditures, research and development,
dividends and other business initiatives and
commitments primarily from cash provided by
operations. Management expects this method of
funding to continue in the future.

Long-term debt and commercial paper was
$141.9 million as of December 31, 2001, and
consists of fixed and floating rate debt representing
euro-denominated borrowings from the 1996 DAF
acquisition and Canadian dollar financing for the
construction of the Company’s truck assembly
facility in Quebec in 1999.

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
in 2001 totaled $81 million as compared to $142
million in 2000. The 2000 amount included $60
million of investments in manufacturing facilities
and tooling for new products for DAF in Europe.
Over the last five years, the Company’s worldwide
capital spending, excluding the Financial Services
segment, totaled $770 million.

Spending for capital investments in 2002,
including new product development, is expected
to be comparable with 2001 levels. Despite the near-
term weakness in the U.S. and Canadian truck
market, PACCAR expects to continue to make
investments in state-of-the-art technology systems
to improve product design, achieve efficiencies in
business processes, enhance the European
distribution network, as well as develop new
manufacturing tooling to support product
development plans.




Financial Services

The net loan and lease portfolios of the Financial
Services companies continue to be funded prima-
rily with external borrowings as well as funds
generated from collections on loans and leases.
An additional source of funds includes capital
contributions and intercompany loans.

The primary sources of external borrowings are
commercial paper and publicly issued medium-
term notes and, to a lesser extent, bank loans. In
2000, PACCAR Financial Corp. (PFC) filed a shelf
registration under which $2.5 billion of medium-
term notes could be issued as needed. At the end of
2001, $1.5 billion of this registration was still
available for issuance.

To reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest
rates, the Financial Services companies pursue a
policy of structuring borrowings with interest-rate
characteristics similar to the assets being funded. As
part of this policy, the companies use interest-rate
contracts. The permitted types of interest-rate con-
tracts and transaction limits have been established
by the Company’s senior management, who receive
periodic reports on the contracts outstanding.

PACCAR believes its Financial Services
companies will be able to continue funding
receivables and servicing debt through internally
generated funds, lines of credit and access to public
and private debt markets.

Commitments
The following summarizes the Company’s contrac-
tual cash commitments at December 31, 2001:

Maturity
< Less than More than
One Year One Year Total
Borrowings $2,869.6 $698.5 $3,568.1
Operating leases 17.0 22.7 39.7
Other obligations 31.4 71.9 103.3
Total $2,918.0 $793.1 $3,711.1

As described in Note J of the consolidated financial
statements, borrowings consist primarily of term
debt and commercial paper of the Financial Services
segment. Other obligations include the Company’s
contractual commitment to acquire future produc-
tion inventory.

The following summarizes the Company’s other
commitments at December 31, 2001:

Commitment Expiration
Less than More than

; One Year One Year Total
Letters of credit $ 23.8 $ 1.3 $ 25.1
Loan guarantees 18.0 18.0
Loan and lease

commitments 116.8 116.8
Equipment

acquisition

commitments 22.6 22.6
Residual value

guarantees 34.9 205.2 240.1
Total $175.5 $247.1 $422.6

Loan guarantees consist of guarantees of the
borrowings of certain PACCAR dealers. Loan and
lease commitments represent commitments to fund
new retail loan and lease contracts in the U.S.
finance company. Equipment acquisition commit-
ments require the Company under specified
circumstances to purchase equipment. Residual
value guarantees represent the Company’s commit-
ment to acquire equipment at a guaranteed value if
the customer elects to return the equipment at a
specified date in the future.

EURO CONVERSION:
PACCAR’s subsidiary, DAF Trucks N.V.,, located in the
Netherlands, completed the process in 2001 of convert-
ing its business systems to be euro-compliant. DAF
worked with its suppliers, dealers and customers to
ensure they were prepared for full euro conversion.
DAF is not aware of any major potential disruption to
normal business activities. The cost of converting to
the euro was not significant to PACCAR. The increased
price transparency as a result of the euro has not had a
significant impact on overall pricing, as DAF is a
custom truck manufacturer and each truck is built to
customer specification. While the long-term impact on
PACCAR’s financial condition and results of
operations is expected to be minimal, the ultimate
impact is dependent on future events, including
market conditions.
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IMPACT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS:

The Company, its competitors and industry in
general are subject to various federal, state and
local requirements relating to the environment. The
Company believes its policies, practices and proce-
dures are designed to prevent unreasonable risk of
environmental damage and that its handling, use
and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances have
been in accordance with environmental laws and
regulations enacted at the time such use and
disposal occurred.

Expenditures related to environmental activities
were just under $3 million in 2001, which was
comparable to spending in 2000 and 1999.

The Company is involved in various stages of
investigations and cleanup actions related to
environmental matters. In certain of these matters,
the Company has been designated as a “potentially
responsible party” by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) or by a state-level
environmental agency. At certain of these sites, the
Company, together with other parties, is participat-
ing with the EPA and other state-level agencies both’
in cleanup studies and the determination of remedial
action, as well as actual remediation procedures.

The Company’s estimated range of reasonably
possible costs to complete cleanup actions, where it
is probable that the Company will incur such costs
and where such amounts can be reasonably esti-
mated, is between $25 million and $45 million. The
Company has established a reserve to provide for
estimated future environmental cleanup costs.

In prior years, the Company was successful in
recovering a portion of its environmental remedia-
tion costs from insurers, but does not believe future
recoveries from insurance carriers will be significant.

While the timing and amount of the ultimate
costs associated with environmental cleanup matters
cannot be determined, management does not expect
that these matters will have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s consolidated cash flow, liquidity
or financial condition.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of
the United States has recently issued Financial
Reporting Release No. 60 (FR60). FR60 requires
registrants to provide additional disclosure of
accounting policies in which estimates are

particularly sensitive and which, if actual results
are different, may have a material impact on the
financial statements. Accounting policies deemed
to meet these criteria are discussed below.

The accounting for trucks sold pursuant to
agreements accounted for as operating leases is
discussed in Notes A and F of the consolidated
financial statements. In determining its estimate
of the residual value of such vehicles, the Company
considers the length of the lease term, the truck
model and anticipated market demand and the
expected usage of the truck. If the sales price of
the trucks at the end of the term of the agreement
differs significantly from the Company’s estimate,
a gain or loss will result. The Company believes its
residual setting policies are appropriate, however,

future market conditions, changes in government

regulations and other factors outside the Company’s
control can impact the ultimate sales price of trucks
returned under these contracts. Residual values are
reviewed regularly and adjusted downward if
market conditions warrant.

* The establishment of credit loss reserves on
financial services receivables is dependent on
estimates including assumptions regarding past
dues, repossession rates and the recovery rate on
the underlying collateral. The Company believes its
reserve-setting policies adequately take into account
the known risks inherent in the financial services
portfolio. If there are significant variations in the
actual results from those estimates, the provision
for credit losses and operating earnings may be
adversely impacted.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS:
Certain information presented in this report
contains forward-looking statements made pursuant
to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, which are subject to risks and uncertainties
that may affect actual results. Risks and uncertain-
ties include, but are not limited to, global and local
economic, political and industry conditions;
competitive pressures; price changes impacting
manufacturing and operating costs; insufficient or
under-utilization of manufacturing capacity; and
legislation and governmental regulation.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2001 2000 1999

TRUCK AND OTHER:

(millions except per share data)

$5,630.0 $7,440.8 $8,648.2

Net sales and revenues

Cost of sales and revenues 5,072.6 6,500.8 7,282.4
Selling, general and administrative 375.9 395.6 582.5
Interest and other, net (3.5) (9.4) 9.1
' 5,445.0 6,887.0 7,874.0
Truck and Other Income Before Income Taxes 185.0 553.8 774.2
FINANCIAL SERVICES:

Revenues 458.8 479.1 372.8
Interest' and other 275.3 300.4 219.9
Selling, general and administrative 62.0 : 59.9 54.4
Provision for losses on receivables 86.5 ) 42.4 20.7

’ _ 423.8 402.7 295.0
Financial Services Income Before Income Taxes 35.0 76.4 77.8
Gain on sale of subsidiary , 33.2
Investment income 35.3 " 349 38.0
Total Income Before Income Taxes . 255.3 665.1 923.2
Income taxes 81.7 2233 339.6
Net Income $ 173.6 = 3 441.8 $ 583.6
" Net Income Per Share , ,

‘Basic $ 227 $ 5.76 $ 7.46
Diluted $ 2.26 $ 573 $ 741
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 76.5 76.7 78.2

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
December 31 2001 2000
(millions of dollars)

TRUCK AND OTHER:
Current A‘ssets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 616.2 $ 515.0
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for losses

(2001 - $21.7 and 2000 - $22.8) 396.3 530.8
Marketable debt securities 406.9 394.7
Inventories 267.8 303.1
Deferred taxes and other current assets 146.9 117.7
Total Truck and Other Current Assets 1,834.1 1,861.3
Equipment on lease, goodwill and other 492.5 412.8
Property, plant and equipment, net 828.8 882.6
Total Truck and Other Assets 3,155.4 3,156.7
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Cash and cash equivalents 39.0 21.7
Finance and other receivables, net of allowance for losses

(2001 - $104.7 and 2000 - $104.6) 4,439.9 4,904.5
Equipment on operating leases, net 187.5 139.0
Other assets 92.1 49.0
Total Financial Services Assets 4,758.5 5,114.2

$7,913.9 $8,270.9




LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
December 31

2001

2000

TRUCK AND OTHER:

Current Liabilities

(millions ofdél'lars)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $1,013.2 $1,097.7
Current portion of long-term debt 101.2 69.1
Dividend payable 19.2 76.4
Total Truck and Other Current Liabilities 1,133.6 1,243.2
Long-term debt 40.7 124.7
Deferred revenues, taxes and other liabilities 696.3 537.2
Total Truck and Other Liabilities 1,870.6 1,905.1
FINANCIAL SERVICES: ‘ )

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other 97.2 92.2
Commercial paper and bank loans 1,919.5 2,273.7
Term debt 1,506.7 1,530.2
Deferred taxes and other liabilities 267.3 220.6
Total Financial Services Liabilities 3,790.7 4,116.7
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Preferred stock, no par value -~ authorized 1.0 million shares, none issued

Common stock, $1 par value - authorized 200.0 million shares,

79.2 million shares issued (including 2.4 million treasury shares) 79.2 78.8
Additional paid-in capital 658.1 643.0
Retained earnings 1,916.5 1,854.1
Less treasury shares — at cost (105.8) (105.8)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (295.4) (221.0)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,252.6 2,249.1

$7,913.9 $8,270.9

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31 . 2001 2000 1999
(millions of dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net tncome $ 173.6 $ 441.8 $ 583.6

Items included in net income not affecting cash:
Depreciation and amortization ‘ : 179.9 155.5 146.9
Provision for losses on financial services receivables 86.5 42.4 20.7
(Gain) Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment ‘ .6 (7.4) .1
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance adjustment (12.4) (2.7)
Gain on sale of subsidiary (33.2)
Other . 40.4 48.9 (5.5)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets other than cash and equivalents:

Receivables 78.6 (20.4) (7.5)

Inventories 23.8 65.9 7.5

Other (12.8) (26.1) (1.7)

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities: ,

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (45.7) (110.4) 83.4

Deferred revenues - : 104.2 135.1 110.6

Other (3.4) (45.5) " 53.1
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 625.7 667.4 955.3

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Finance receivables originated .- (1,569.1) (2,256.5) (2,395.7)
Collections on finance receivables 1,897.9 1,729.5 1,711.3
Net decrease (increase) in wholesale receivables 45.5 .6 (259.4)
Marketable securities purchases (636.8) (268.6) (907.4)
Marketable securities sales and maturities 628.6 408.5 773.3
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary 143.2
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (83.9) (142.9) (256.0)
Acquisition of equipment for operéting leases (225.4) (225.0) (150.1)
Proceeds from asset disposals ‘ 18.8 36.1 25.6
Other (9.5) (7.1) (32.7)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 75.1 (725.4) (1,347.9)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Cash dividends paid (168.4) (217.5) (188.1)
Purchase of treasury shares (105.8)

Stock option transactions ‘ 12.0 13.0 4.7

Net (decrease) increase in commercial paper and bank loans (337.7) 198.4 512.0

Proceeds from long-term debt 458.8 819.0 679.1

Payments on long-term debt (517.2) (629.0) (481.2)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities ' (552.5) 78.1 526.5

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (29.8) (11.8) (37.9)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 118.5 8.3 96.0

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 536.7 528.4 432.4

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 655.2 $ 5367 $ 528.4

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

2001

December 31 2000 1999
(millions of dollars except per share data)

COMMON STOCK. $1 PAR VALUE:
Balance at beginning of year ‘$ 788 $ 78.3 $ 78.1
Stock options exercised 4 3 2
Other stock compensation 2
Balance at end of year 79.2 78.8 78.3
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL: ,
Balance at beginni‘ng of year 643.0 626.9 620.2
Stock options exercised and tax benefit 14.8 11.7 6.6
Other stock compensation 3 4.4 .1
Balance at end of year 658.1 643.0 626.9
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Balance at beginning of year 1,854.1 1,580.9 1,185.7
Net income 173.6 441.8 583.6
Cash dividends declared on common stock, \

per share: 2001-$1.45; 2000-$2.20; 1999-$2.40 (111.2) (168.6) (188.4)
Balance at end of year 1,916.5 1,854.1 1,580.9
TREASURY STOCK—AT COST:
Balance at beginning of year (105.8)
Purchases (105.8)
Balance at end of year (105.8) (105.8)
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:

NET UNREALIZED INVESTMENT GAINS (LOSSES):

Balance at beginning of year $ . (5.8) $  (6.4) $ 2.0

Net unrealized gains (losses) 4.4 (.4) (8.4)

Balance at end of year (2.4) (6.8) (6.4)

MINIMUM PENSION LIABILITY:

Balance at beginning of year

Increase in minimum pension liability (8.8)

Balance at end of year (8.8)

ACCUMULATED UNREALIZED NET LOSS ON DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS:

Balance at beginning of year »

Net unrealized losses (37.3)

Balance at end of year (37.3)

CURRENCY TRANSLATION:

Balance at beginning of year (214.2) (169.1) (121.8)

Translation losses (32.7) - (45.1) (47.3)

Balance at end of year _ (246.9) (214.2) (169.1)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (295.4) $ (221.0) $ (175.5)
Total Stockholders’ Equity $2,252.6 $2,249.1 $2,110.6

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

December 31 2001 2000 1999
(millions of dollars)
Net income $173.6 $441.8 $583.6
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Minimum pension liability increase (8.8)
Cumulative effect of accounting change for derivative contracts (15.7)
Unrealized net loss on derivative contracts (21.6)
Net unrealized investment gains (losses) 4.4 (.4) (8.4)
Foreign currency translation losses (32.7) (45.1) (47.3)
Net other comprehensive (loss) (74.4) (45.5) (55.7)
Comprehensive Income $ 99.2 $396.3 $527.9

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Operations: PACCAR Inc (the
Company or PACCAR) is a multinational company
operating principally in two segments: (1) the man-
ufacture and distribution of light-, medium- and
heavy-duty commercial trucks and related after-
market parts and (2) finance and leasing products
and services provided to customers and dealers.
PACCAR’s sales and revenues are derived primarily
from its operations in the United States and Europe.
The Company also operates in Canada, Australia
and Mexico.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned domestic and
foreign subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consoli-
dation. The equity method of accounting is used for
investments in companies where PACCAR has a 20%
to 50% ownership interest.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents
consist of short-term liquid investments with a
maturity at date of purchase of three months or less.

Goodwill: Goodwill is amortized on a straight-
line basis for periods ranging from 15 to 25 years.
At December 31, 2001 and 2000, goodwill amounted
to $61.4 and $68.3, net of accumulated amortization
of $17.9 and $15.6, respectively. Amortization of

goodwill totaled $3.0, $3.0 and $4.2 in 2001, 2000
and 1999. Goodwill and related annual amortization
expense is impacted by the effect of movements in
the exchange rate used to translate amounts from
the Company’s foreign subsidiaries.

Revenue Recognition: Substantially all sales and
revenues of trucks and related aftermarket parts
are recorded by the Company when products are
shipped to dealers or customers except for certain
truck shipments in Europe that are subject to a
residual value guarantee to the customer. Revenues
related to these shipments are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the guarantee period
(see Note F).

Interest income from finance and other
receivables is recognized using the interest
method. Certain loan origination costs are deferred
and amortized to interest and other income. For
operating leases, income is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Recognition of income
is suspended when management determines that
collection of future income is not probable
(generally after 90 days past due). Recognition is
resumed if the receivable becomes contractually
current and the collection of amounts is again
considered probable.

Foreign Currency Translation: For most of
PACCAR’s foreign subsidiaries, the local currency is
the functional currency. All assets and liabilities are
translated at year-end exchange rates and all income
statement amounts are translated at an average of
the month-end rates. Adjustments resulting from
this translation are recorded in a separate compo-
nent of stockholders’ equity.



NOTES TO CONSOLHDATEID FINARNCIAL S_TE\TEMENTS

" December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

PACCAR uses the U.S. dollar as the functional
currency for its Mexican subsidiaries. In additien, the
Company’s Netherlands subsidiaries use the euro as
the functional currency for their subsidiaries.
Accordingly, for these subsidiaries, inventories, cost
of sales, property, plant and equipment, and depreci-
ation were translated at historical rates. Resulting
gains and losses are included in net income.

Net foreign currency translations and transactions
increased net income by $.9 in 2001 and decreased
net income by $1.9 in 2000 and $5.9 in 1999.

Research and Development: Research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred. Amounts
charged against income were $74 in 2001, $102 in
2000 and $125 in 1999. o

New Accounting Standards: Effective January 1,
2001, the Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standard (FAS) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, which requires
that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
balance sheet at fair value. As of the derivative
contract’s inception date, the Company designates
the derivative as either a fair value or a cash flow
hedge. A fair value hedge mitigates the Company’s
exposure to the change in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability. A cash flow hedge reduces the
Company’s exposure to a forecasted transaction or
the variable cash flows related to an asset or liability.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives 4designated
as part of a hedge transaction are recorded each
period in current earnings or other comprehensive
income depending on the type of hedged transaction.
For fair value hedge transactions, changes in fair
value of the derivative instrument are generally offset
in the income statement by changes in the fair value
" of the item being hedged. For cash flow hedge trans-
actions, changes in the fair value of the derivative
instrument are reported.in other comprehensive
income. The gains and losses on cash flow hedge
transactions reported in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to earnings in the same period that
the related cash flows of the hedge transaction affect
earnings. The ineffective portions of all hedges are
recognized in current period earnings. Upon initial
application of FAS No. 133 in 2001, the Company
recorded the fair value of the existing interest rate
swap contracts on the balance sheet and a corre-
sponding unrecognized loss of $15.7 million, net of
related tax effect, as a cumulative effect adjustment to
other comprehensive income.

- In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, which requires the cessation of

~ goodwill amortization and that goodwill only be 3

written down for impairments. The Company will

~ adopt FAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, The Company

does not expect to record an impairment of goodwill
upon adoption.

Reclassifications: Certain prior-year amounts
have been reclassified to conform to the 2001
presentation.

B. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The Company’s investments in marketable securities
are classified as available-for-sale. These invest-
ments are stated at fair value with any unrealized
holding gains or losses, net of tax, included as a
component of stockholders’ equity until realized.
The cost of debt securities available-for-sale is
adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity. Amortization
of premiums, accretion of discounts, interest and
dividend income are included as a component of
investment income. The cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method.
Marketable debt securities at December 31, 2001,
were as follows: ‘ ‘
AMORTIZED FAIR

COST VALUE
U.S. government securities $ 5.0 $ 5.2
Tax-exempt securities 397.0 401.7

$402.0 $406.9

Marketable debt securities at December 31, 2000,
were as follows: ,
AMORTIZED FAIR

COST VALUE
U.S. government securities  $ 55.0 $ 55.4
Tax-exempt securities 326.9 3335
Other debt securities 5.8 5.8

$387.7 $394.7

"The contractual maturities of debt securities at
December 31, 2001, were as follows:

AMORTIZED FAIR
Maturities: . COST VALUE
One year or less $ 75.3 $ 76.9
After one to five years - 326.7 330.0

$402.0 $406.9

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

The Company’s investments in marketable equity
securities are included in “Equipment on lease,
goodwill and other.” Cost and fair values at
December 31 were as follows:

2001 2000
Cost $ 15.7 $ 15.7
Fair value $ 7.0 $ 35

In 2001 and 2000, the difference between cost
and fair value of marketable equity securities repre-
sented gross unrealized holding losses. Gross real-
ized losses on marketable equity securities for the
year ended December 31, 2000, were $10.0. Gross
realized gains and losses were not significant in 2001
and 1999.

C. INVENTORIES

2001 2000
Inventories at cost:
Finished products $ 188.1 $ 202.0
Work in process
and raw materials 203.0 225.0
391.1 427.0
Less LIFO reserve (123.3) (123.9)
$ 267.8 $ 303.1

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.
Cost of inventories in the United States is deter-
mined principally by the last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method. Cost of all other inventories is determined
principally by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
Inventories valued using the LIFO method com-
prised 46% and 43% of consolidated inventories
before deducting the LIFO reserve at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

D. FINANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Finance and other receivables are as follows:
2001 2000

$3,015.4 $3,599.8

Retail notes and contracts

Wholesale financing 398.7 443.3
Direct financing leases 1,380.6 1,291.3
Interest and other receivables 61.7 38.5
4,856.4 5,372.9
Less allowance for losses (104.7) (104.6)

4,751.7 5,268.3
Unearned interest:
Retail notes and contracts (1390.5) (181.9)
Direct financing leases (181.3) (181.9)

! (311.8) (363.8)
$4,439.9 $4,904.5

The Company’s customers are principally
concentrated in the United States, which repre-
sented 74% of total receivables at December 31,
2001, and 81% at December 31, 2000. Terms for
substantially all finance and other receivables range
up to 60 months. Repayment experience indicates
some receivables will be paid prior to contracted
maturity, while others will be extended or renewed.

Annual payments due on retail notes and
contracts beginning January 1, 2002, are $1,261.5,
$809.5, $565.8, $282.4, $80.8 and $15.4 thereafter.

Estimated residual values included with direct
financing leases amounted to $98.8 in 2001 and
$79.9 in 2000. Annual minimum lease payments
due on direct financing leases beginning January 1,
2002, are $385.2, $344.1, $258.3, $171.1, $84.4 and
$38.7 thereafter.

E. ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES

The provision for losses on net finance and other
receivables is charged to income in an amount
sufficient to maintain the allowance for losses at a
level considered adequate to cover estimated credit
losses. Receivables are charged to this allowance
when, in the judgment of management, they are
deemed uncollectible (usually upon repossession
of the collateral).

The allowance for losses on Truck and Other
and Financial Services receivables is summarized
as follows:

TRUCK  FINANCIAL
AND OTHER SERVICES
Balance, January 1, 1999 § 242 $ 67.1
Provision for losses -17.1 20.7
Net losses, including translation  (5.6) (6.5)
Balance, December 31, 1999 35.7 81.3
Transfers and other (11.1) 15.4
Provision for losses 1.2 42.4
Net losses, including translation  (3.0) (34.5)
Balance, December 31, 2000 22.8 104.6
Provision for losses 4 86.5
Net losses, including translation (1.5) (86.4)

Balance, December 31, 2001 $ 21.7 $104.7

The Company’s customers are principally
concentrated in the transportation industry. There
are no significant concentrations of credit risk in
terms of a single customer. Generally, Financial
Services receivables are collateralized by financed
equipment. In 1999, the provision for Truck and
Other was primarily for estimated losses related to
a customer in Europe. During 2000, certain finance
receivables were transferred to the Financial
Services segment.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

F. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

Truck and Other:
Certain equipment sold to customers in Europe
subject to a residual value guarantee (RVG) is
recorded at cost and amortized on the straight-line
basis to its guaranteed residual value. Guarantee
periods generally range from three to seven years.
The Company reviews residual values periodically to
~ determine that recorded amounts are appropriate.

Included in “Equipment on lease, goodwill and
other” were the following with respect to such RVG
transactions:

2001 2000

Equipment on lease $412.7 $293.0
Less allowance for depreciation  (65.4) (34.5)

$347.3 $258.5

When the equipment is sold subject to an RVG,
the full sales price is received from the customer. A
liability is established for the residual value obliga-
tion with the remainder of the proceeds recorded as
deferred lease revenue. These amounts are included
in “Deferred revenues, taxes and other liabilities” as
summarized below:

2001 2000
Deferred lease revenues $167.9 $136.8
Residual value guarantee 240.1 179.7

$ 408.0 $316.5

The deferred lease revenue is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the RVG contract period to
the amount of the guarantee. At December 31, 2001,
the annual amortization of deferred revenue
beginning January 1, 2002, is $62.1, $54.6, $34.8,
$13.5, $2.4 and $.5 thereafter. Annual maturities of
the residual value guarantees beginning January 1,
2002, are $34.9, $54.6, $88.1, $50.9, $10.2 and
$1.4 thereafter.

Financial Services:

Equipment leased to customers under operating
leases is recorded at cost and is depreciated on the
straight-line basis to its estimated residual value.
Estimated useful lives range from five to ten years.

2001 2000

Transportation equipment $242.3 $177.0
Less allowance for depreciation  (54.8) (38.0)

$187.5 $139.0

Original terms of operating leases generally
average five years, but may range up to 84 months.
Annual minimum lease payments due on operating
leases beginning January 1, 2002, are $46.2, $42.3,
$47.7, $16.3, $4.9 and $.4 thereafter.

G. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment include the
following:

2001 2000
Land - . $ 798 $ 826
Buildings 489.0 483.1
Machinery and equipment 1,034.0 1,029.6

1,602.8 1,595.3
Less allowance for
depreciation (774.9) (712.7)

$ 8288 § 8826

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.
Depreciation of plant and equipment is computed
principally by the straight-line method based upon
the estimated useful lives of the various classes of

assets, which range as follows:
Machinery and equipment 5-12 years
Buildings 30-40 years

H. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses include the
following:

2001 2000
Truck and Other:

Accounts payable $ 4529 § 496.6
Salaries and wages 125.1 122.0

Warranty and self-insurance
reserves 207.0 223.6
Other 228.2 255.5
$1,013.2 $1,097.7

[. LEASES

The Company leases aircraft, computer equipment
and office space under operating leases. Leases
expire at various dates through the year 2010.

Annual minimum rental payments due under
operating leases beginning January 1, 2002, are
$17.0, $9.7, $5.9, $3.4, $2.1 and $1.6 thereafter.

Total rental expenses under all leases for the
three years ended December 31, 2001, were $30.2,
$28.7 and $34.6.

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




NOTES TO CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

J. BORROWINGS AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS

EFFECTIVE
RATE 2001 2000
Truck and Other:
Current portion of
long-term debt 43% $ - 778 $ 379
Commercial paper 2.7% 23.4 31.2
$ 101.2 $ 69.1
Long-term debt:
Fixed rate debt 49% $ 299 $ 631
Floating rate debt  3.8% 42.4 44.9
Commercial paper 5.7% 31.4 39.2
Noninterest bearing
notes 14.8 15.4
‘ ' 118.5 162.6
Less current portion (77.8) (37.9)

$ 407 § 1247

Interest expense on external borrowings

"~ amounted to $9.5, $12.1 and $14.4 for 2001, 2000,

and 1999, respectively.

The interest rate on the floating rate debt is based
on the Amsterdam Interbank Offered Rate.
Commercial paper classified as long-term debt is
based on management’s ability and intent to main-
tain these borrowings on a long-term basis. Annual
maturities for long-term debt for the five years
beginning January 1, 2002, are $77.8, $7.1, $6.3, $6.3,
$6.3 and $14.7 thereafter.

EFFECTIVE
RATE 2001 2000

Financial Services:

Commercial paper 4.8% $1,899.4 $2,189.3

Bank loans 3.1% 20.1 84.4
$1,919.5 $2,273.7

Term debt:
Fixed rate 72% $ 3567 $ 729.5
Floating rate 4.9% 1,150.0 800.7
1,506.7 1,530.2
$3,426.2 $3,803.9

The effective rate is the weighted average rate
as of December 31, 2001, and includes the effects
of interest-rate agreements.

Annual maturities of term debt beginning
January 1, 2002, are $848.9, $648.4, $8.7 and $.7.

Consolidated:
Interest paid on consolidated borrowings was
$210.3, $245.3 and $182.1 in 2001, 2000 and 1999.
The weighted average interest rate on consolidated
commercial paper and bank loans was 4.95%, 6.47%
and 5.99% at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

The Company has line of credit arrangements of
$2,443.7, most of which are reviewed annually for
renewal. The unused portion of these credit lines
was $2,294.5 at December 31, 2001, of which the
majority is maintained to support commercial paper
and other short-term borrowings of the financial
services companies. Compensating balances are not
required on the lines, and service fees are immate-
rial. In addition, at December 31, 2001, there was
$1,475.0 of medium-term debt available for issuance
under an outstanding shelf registration.

K. RETIREMENT PLANS

PACCAR has several defined benefit pension plans
which cover a majority of its employees.

The following data relate to all pension plans of
the Company, except for certain union-negotiated,
multi-employer and foreign insured plans:

2001 2000

Weighted Average Assumptions as of December 31:

Discount rate

Rate of increase in future
compensation levels

Assumed long-term rate
of return on plan assets

6.8% 6.7%
4.4% 4.5%

7.8% 7.8%

2001 2000

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at January !
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) loss

Foreign currency translation
Participant contributions
Plan amendments
Curtailments

Settlements

Benefits paid

$567.6 $519.0

245 274
373 347
(9.3) 259
(.5) (12.9)
2.7 2.6
(.1) 5.3
(3.0)
(12.8)

(19.4) (18.6)

Benefit obligation at December 31 $602.8 $567.6

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets at
January 1

Actual return on plan assets

Foreign currency translation

Employer contributions

Participant contributions

Benefits paid

Settlements

$501.4 $534.4

(23.1) (2.4)
(1.2) (12.9)
8.7 11.1
2.7 2.6
(19.4) (18.6)
(12.8)

Fair value of plan assets at
December 31 ‘

$469.1 $501.4
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December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (currencies in millions)

2001 2000 -
Funded Status at December 31: :
Funded status $(133.7) $(66.2)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain)  37.6 (12.9)
Unrecognized prior service cost 19.5 22.7
Unrecognized net initial ~
obligation ‘ 2.3 2.0
Net liability $,(73.7) $(54.4)
Details of Net Liability Recorded:
‘Prepaid benefit costs % 42 % 6.3
Accrued benefit Hability (106.8) (76.7)
Intangible asset ' 14.9 16.0
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss ‘ 13.2
Net liability $ (73.7) $(54.4)
2001 2000 1999
Components of Pension Expense:
Service cost $ 245 $27.4 $242
Interest on projected
benefit obligation 37.3 34.7 31.3

Expected return on assets  (38.9) (37.3) (33.6)

Amortization of prior ‘
" service costs 2.9 2.7 3.0

Recognized actuarial L

loss (gain) 5 .6 (.3)
Recognized gain from

plan curtailment (2.4)
Net pension expense $ 263 $257 $ 246

Pension expense for union-negotiated, multi-
employer and foreign insured plans was $12.7, $12.1

and $15.0 in 2001, 2000 and 1999. Pension expense in |

2001, 2000 and 1999 included $11.1, $9.2 and $10.3,

. for a foreign insured plan related to DAF Trucks.

The Company has unfunded postretirement
medical and life insurance plans covering approxi-
mately one-half of all U.S. employees that reimburse
retirees for approximately 50% of their medical
costs from retirement to age 65 and provide a
nominal death benefit. .

The following data relate to unfunded postretire-
ment medical and life insurance plans:

2001 2000
Unfunded Status at December 31:
Unfunded status $(36.3) $(33.3)
Unrecognized actuarial gain (2.8) (2.8)
Unrecognized prior service cost 1.1 1.3
Unrecognized net initial obligation 4.7 5.1

Accrued postretirement benefits  $(33.3) $(29.7)

2001 - 2000

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at January 1 $33.3 $32.7

Service cost 1.5 1.7
Interest cost 2.3 2.2
Benefits paid (.8) (.5)
Curtailments o (1.9)
Actuarial gains (.9)

Benefit obligation at December 31 $36.3 $33.3

2001 2000 1999
" Components of Retiree Expense:
Service cost $1.5 $1.7 $2.1
Interest cost ) 2.3 2.2 2.0
Recognized prior service ‘
cost ' .2 2 2
Recognized net initial :
obligation 4 .5 .5
Curtailment (.5)
Net retiree expense $4.4 $4.1 $4.8

The discount rate used for calculating the accu-
mulated plan benefits was 7.0% for 2001 and 2000.
The long-term medical inflation rate used was 7.0%
for 2001 and 2002 and is expected to remain the
same in the future,

Assumed health care cost trends have a
significant effect on the amounts reported for the
postretirement health care plans. A one-percentage-
point change in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have the following effects:

1% 1%
INCREASE DECREASE

Effect on total of service

and interest cost _

componernts $ 4 $ (4)
Effect on accumulated

postretirement benefit

obligation - $3.9 ${3.5)

The Company has certain defined contribution -
benefit plans whereby it generally matches employee
contributions of 2% to 5% of base wages. The
majority of participants in these plans are non-
union employees located in the United States.
Expenses for these plans were $13.7, $15.8, and
$15.0 in 2001, 2000 and 1999.

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries
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L. INCOME TAXES

2001 2000 1999

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:
Domestic $(19.7) $357.1 $690.3
Foreign 275.0 308.0 232.9

$255.3 $665.1 $923.2

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes:
Current provision (benefit):

Federal $(19.3) $ 78.4 $229.3

Foreign 84.1 112.2 87.6

State (1.0) 13.2 28.9
63.8 203.8 345.8

Deferred provision (benefit): '

Federal and state 11.4 36.7 3.9

Foreign 6.5 (17.2) (10.1)
17.9 19.5 (6.2)

$ 81.7 $223.3  $339.6

Reconciliation of Statutory U.S. Tax to Actual
Provision:

Statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Statutory tax $ 90.3 $233.4 $323.1
Effect of:
State income taxes 2.7 10.5 19.6
NOL reserve
adjustment (12.4) (2.7) »
Other (11.3) (8.2) (.4)

$ 81.7 $223.3  $339.6

At December 31: 2001 2000

Components of Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):
Assets:
Provisions for accrued

expenses $199.5 $160.9
Allowance for losses on
receivables 33.7 37.3
Net operating loss
‘carryforwards 78.0 86.2
Other 24.7 27.4
335.9 311.8
Valuation reserve (64.0) (71.4)
271.9 240.4
Liabilities:
Asset capitalization and
depreciation (72.6) (58.8)
Financing and leasing
activities (202.6) (195.3)
Other (58.3) (49.5)
(333.5) (303.6)

Net deferred tax liability $(61.6) $(63.2)

At December 31: 2001 2000

Classification of Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):
Truck and Other:
Deferred taxes and other

current assets $ 95.7 $102.4
Equipment on lease,

goodwill and other 26.8 35.0
Deferred revenues, taxes

and other liabilities (13.9) (15.6)

Financial Services:
Deferred taxes
and other liabilities

Net deferred tax liability

(170.2)
$ (61.6)

(185.0)
$(63.2)

United States income taxes are not provided on
undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries because of the intent to reinvest these
earnings. The amount of undistributed earnings,
which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested,
is approximately $1,175 at December 31, 2001.

Leyland Trucks Ltd. unutilized net operating loss
carryforwards and valuation reserves (tax effected)
were $78.0 and $64.0 at December 31, 2001, and
$86.2 and $71.4 at December 31, 2000. These net
operating losses carry forward indefinitely, subject
to certain limitations under United Kingdom law.

Cash paid for income taxes was $43.0, $251.6 and
$317.3 in 2001, 2000 and 1999.

M. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in various stages of inves-
tigations and cleanup actions in different countries
related to environmental matters. In certain of these
matters, the Company has been designated as a
Potentially Responsible Party by the U.S. Environ-
mental Protection Agency or by a state-level envi-
ronmental agency. The Company has provided for
the estimated costs to investigate and complete
cleanup actions where it is probable that the
Company will incur such costs in the future.

While neither the timing nor the amount of the

. ultimate costs associated with future environmental

cleanup can be determined, management does not
expect that those matters will have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position.

At December 31, 2001, PACCAR had standby
letters of credit and loan guarantees outstanding
totaling $43.1, which guarantee various insurance
and financing activities. The Company is committed,
under specific circumstances, to purchase equipment
ata cost of $15.2 in 2005 and $7.4 in 2006. At
December 31, 2001, PACCAR’s Financial Services
companies, in the normal course of business, had
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outstanding commitments to fund new loan and
lease transactions amounting to $116.8. The com-
mitments generally expire in 90 days. The Company
had commitments to purchase future production
inventory totaling $103.3 at December 31, 2001.
PACCAR is a defendant in various legal
proceedings and, in addition, there are various
other contingent liabilities arising in the normal
course of business. After consultation with legal
counsel, management does not anticipate that
disposition of these proceedings and contingent
liabilities will have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

N. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used
by the Company in determining its fair value disclo-
sures for financial instruments:

Cash and Equivalents: The carrying amount
reported in the balance sheet is stated at fair value.

Marketable Debt and Equity Securities: Fair values
are based on quoted market prices.

Financial Services Net Receivables: For floating-
rate loans and wholesale financings, fair values are
based on carrying values. For fixed-rate loans, fair
values are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis based on interest rates currently being
offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of
similar credit quality. The carrying amount of
accrued interest and other receivables approximates
its fair value. Direct financing lease receivables and
the related loss provisions have been excluded from
the accompanying table.

Short- and Long-term Debt: The carrying amount
of the Company’s commercial paper and short-term
bank borrowings and floating-rate long-term debt
approximates its fair value. The fair value of the
Company’s fixed-rate long-term debt is estimated
using discounted cash flow analysis, based on the
Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for
similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Derivative Instruments: Fair values for the
Company’s interest-rate contracts are based on costs
that would be incurred to terminate existing agree-
ments and enter into new agreements with similar
notional amounts, maturity dates and counterpar-
ties’ credit standing at current market interest rates.
The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is the
amount the Company would receive or pay to termi-
nate the contracts. This amount is calculated using
quoted market rates.

Trade Receivables and Payables: Carrying
amounts approximate fair value and have been
excluded from the accompanying table.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

CARRYING FAIR
2001 AMOUNT VALUE
Truck and Other:
Cash and equivalents $ 6162 $ 616.2
Marketable debt securities 406.9 406.9
Marketable equity securities 7.0 7.0
Commercial paper 23.4 23.4
Long-term debt 118.5 115.1
Derivative liabilities 1.8 1.8
Financial Services:
Cash and equivalents 39.0 39.0
Net receivables ) 3,202.9 3,257.1
Derivative assets 29 - 2.9
Derivative liabilities - 66.1 60.1
Commercial paper and
bank loans 1,919.5 1,919.5
Long-term debt 1,5¢6.7  1,517.0
v CARRYING FAIR
2000 AMOUNT VALUE
Truck and Other:
Cash and equivalents $ 5150 $ 515.0
Marketable debt securities 394.7 394.7
Marketable equity securities 3.5 3.5
Commercial paper . 31.2 31.2
Long-term debt 162.6 154.2
Financial Services:
Cash and equivalents 21.7 21.7
Net receivables 3,783.5 3,714.6
Commercial péper and
bank loans 2,273.7  2,273.7
Long-term debt 1,530.2 1,542.7

In 2000, the Company’s off-balance-sheet
derivative financial instruments consisted of
interest-rate agreements and foreign currency
exchange contracts. The interest-rate agreements
represented an additional liability of $23.5, and the
foreign currency exchange contracts represented an
additional asset of $.4 if recorded at fair value at
December 31, 2000.

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries
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O. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company does not engage in derivatives
trading, market-making or other speculative
activities. The Company enters into derivative
financial agreements as hedging transactions to
manage certain exposures to fluctuations in interest
rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company documents its risk management strategy
and hedge effectiveness at the inception of and
during the term of each hedge. The Company in the
normal course of business enters into the following
types of derivative transactions: )

Interest-Rate Contracts: The Company enters into
various interest-rate contracts, including interest-
rate and currency swap, cap and forward-rate
agreements. Interest-rate contracts generally involve
the exchange of fixed and floating rate interest
payments without the exchange of the underlying
principal. These contracts are used to manage
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates. Net
amounts paid or received are reflected as adjust-
ments to interest expense. At December 31, 2001,
the Company had 184 interest-rate contracts out-
standing with other financial institutions. The
notional amount of these contracts totaled $2,109.8,
with amounts expiring annually over the next five
years. The notional amount is used to measure the
volume of these contracts and does not represent
exposure to credit loss. In the event of default by a
counterparty, the risk in these transactions is the
cost of replacing the interest-rate contract at cur-
rent market rates. The Company has established
minimum credit ratings of the counterparties and
limits its exposure to any one counterparty.
Management believes that the risk of nonperfor-
mance by the counterparties is very low.

Floating to fixed rate swaps effectively convert an
equivalent amount of commercial paper and other
variable rate debt to fixed rates. Notional maturities
for the five years beginning January 1, 2002, are
$962.3, $628.9, $383.8, $121.0 and $13.8. The
weighted average pay rate of 5.9% approximates
the Company’s net cost of funds. The weighted
average receive rate of 2.3% offsets rates on
associated debt obligations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts: PACCAR
enters into foreign currency exchange contracts to
hedge certain anticipated transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. PACCAR has currency
exchange exposure for the value of the U.S. dollar
compared to the Canadian dollar, the euro and
British pound. With respect to Europe, PACCAR
has currency exposure for the value of the euro
compared to the British pound and other national

currencies in Europe. As a matter of policy, the
Company does not engage in currency speculation.
Foreign exchange contracts generally mature within
six months. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
PACCAR had net foreign exchange purchase
contracts outstanding amounting to $168.0 and
$38.0 U.S. dollars.

Derivatives that have been designated and qualify
as cash flow hedging instruments are reported at
fair value on the balance sheet. The gain or loss on
the effective portion of the hedge arising from the
change in fair value is initially reported in other
comprehensive income. The remaining gain or loss,
if any, is recognized currently in earnings. Amounts
in accumulated other comprehensive income are
reclassified into net income in the same period in
which the hedged forecasted transaction affects
earnings. Net gains and losses from foreign
exchange contracts are recognized as an adjustment
to cost of sales. Net gains and losses from interest-
rate contracts are recognized as an adjustment to
interest expense. Of the accumulated net loss
included in other comprehensive income as of
December 31, 2001, $34.8 is expected to be
reclassified to net income in 2002.

During 2001, the Company recognized a net
gain of $.1 million from derivative instruments
designated and qualifying as fair value hedges.
Ineffectiveness was immaterial for both fair value
and cash flow hedges.

P. SALE OF BUSINESS

In October 1999, PACCAR sold its retail automotive
parts and accessories business to an automotive
aftermarket specialty retailer based in Phoenix,
Arizona, for $143.2 in cash, resulting in a $33.2
pretax gain.
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Q. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

PACCAR has a Stock Option Plan (Plan) under
which officers, key employees, and non-employee
directors may be granted options to purchase shares
of the Company’s authorized but unissued common
stock. The maximum number of shares of the
Company’s common stock available for issuance
under the Plan is 6 million shares. As of December
31,2001, the maximum number of shares available
for future grants under the Plan is 1.9 million.
Options currently outstanding under the Plan were
granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock at the date
of grant. Options currently expire no later than

10 years from the grant date and generally vest -
within three years. The Plan’s stock option activity
is as follows:

Average

Number Exercise

of Shares Price*

Qutstanding at 12/31/98 1,524,700 $32.58

Granted 503,800 53.78

Exercised {189,500) 23.76
Cancelled (59,000) 47.03

Outstanding at 12/31/99 1,780,000 39.00

Granted 590,800 41.75

Exercised (337,800) 24.81

Cancelled (52,600) 51.44

- Outstanding at 12/31/00 1,980,400 41.97

Granted ) 539,200 51.62

Exercised (366,400) - 31.49
Cancelled (47,300) 48.10

Outstanding at 12/31/01 2,105,900  $46.13

The following tables summarize information about
stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2001:

Stock Options Outstanding:

Remaining Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise
Exercise Prices of Shares Life in Years ' Price*
$21.60-$24.75 176,700 4.0 $23.75
$36.63~$41.75 727,600 7.4 $40.58‘
$51.63~$53.78 1,201,600 7.9 $52.76

2,105,900 7.4 $46.13
*Weighted Average

Stock Options Exercisable:

Range of Number Average
Exercise Prices of Shares Exercise Price*
' $21.60~$24.75 176,700 $23.75
$36.63-$36.63 165,500 $36.63
$53.50-$53.50 221,300 $53.50

563,500 $39.22

*Weighted Average

If the Company determined compensation
costs based on the fair value at the grant date for
its stock options, net earnings and earnings per

. share would have been reduced to the following

pro forma amounts:

2001 2000 1999
Net earnings $167.9 $437.1 $580.0
Basic earnings per share 2.20 570  7.41
Diluted earnings per share  2.18 5.67 7.36

The estimated fair value of stock options granted
during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $18.18, $16.82 and
$19.21 per share, respectively. These amounts were
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, which values options based on the stock price
at the grant date, and the following assumptions:

2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 5.50% 6.87% 5.57%
Expected volatility of

 common stock 50% 51%  44%
Dividend yield . 4,4% 4.5% 4.3%

Expected life of options  5years 5 years 5 years

Diluted Earnings Per Share: The following table
shows the additional shares added to weighted
average basic shares outstanding to calculate diluted
earnings per share. These amounts primarily repre-
sent the dilutive effect of stock options. Options
outstanding at each year-end with exercise prices in
excess of the respective year’s average common stock
market price have been excluded from the amounts
shown in the table.

2001 2000 1999

Additional shares 456,935 460,689 529,727

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries
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R. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stock Repurchases: For the year ended December 31,
2000, the Company repurchased 2.4 million shares at
a total cost of $105.8.

Stockholder Rights Plan: The plan provides one
right for each share of PACCAR common stock
outstanding. Rights become exercisable if a person
publicly announces the intention to acquire 15% or
more of PACCAR’s common stock or if a person
(Acquiror) acquires such amount of common stock.
In all cases, rights held by the Acquiror are not
exercisable. When exercisable, each right entitles
the holder to purchase for two hundred dollars a
fractional share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock. Each fractional preferred share has
dividend, liquidation and voting rights which are no
less than those for a share of common stock. Under
certain circumstances, the rights may become exer-
cisable for shares of PACCAR common stock or
common stock of the Acquiror having a market value
equal to twice the exercise price of the right. Also
under certain circumstances, the Board of Directors
may exchange exercisable rights, in whole or in part,
for one share of PACCAR common stock per right.
The rights, which expire in the year 2009, may be
redeemed at one cent per right, subject to certain
conditions. For this plan, 50,000 preferred shares are
reserved for issuance. No shares have been issued.

Other Comprehensive Income: Following are the
items included in other comprehensive income (loss)
and the related tax effects:

Pretax Tax Net
Amount Effect Amount
1999
Net unrealized investment losses:
Net holding loss $(14.9) $5.7 $ (9.2)
Reclassification
adjustment 1.4 (.6) .8
Net unrealized loss (13.5) 5.1 (8.4)
Currency translation
adjustment (47.3) (47.3)
Total other comprehensive
income $(60.8) $5.1 $(55.7)

Pretax Tax Net
Amount Effect Amount
2000 '
Net unrealized investment losses:
Net holding loss $ (6.0) $ 1.9 §$ (4.1)
Reclassification
adjustment 5.4 (1.7) 3.7
Net unrealized loss - (.6) 2 (4)
Currency translation
adjustment (45.1) (45.1)
Total other comprehensive
income $(45.7) $ .2 $(45.5)
2001
Net unrealized investment gains:
Net holding gain $ 7.0 $(2.8)8% 4.2
Reclassification
adjustment 4 (.2) 2
Net unrealized gain 7.4 (3.9) 4.4
Currency translation
adjustment (32.7) (32.7)
Minimum pension
liability increase (13.2) 4.4 (8.8)
Net unrealized derivative losses:
Cumulative effect (25.8) 10.1 (15.7)
Net holding loss (45.5) 17.4 (28.1)
Reclassification :
adjustment 10.6 (4.1) 6.5
Net unrealized loss (60.7) 23.4 (37.3)
Total other comprehensive
income $(99.2) $24.8 $(74.4)

S. SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

PACCAR operates in two principal industries,
Trucks and Financial Services.

The Truck segment is composed of the manufac-
ture of trucks and the distribution of related parts
which are sold through a network of company-
appointed dealers. This segment derives a large pro-
portion of its revenues and operating profits from
operations in the United States and Europe.

The Financial Services segment is composed of
finance and leasing products and services provided
to truck customers and dealers. Revenues are
primarily generated from operations in the
United States. ‘

Included in All Other is PACCAR’s industrial
winch manufacturing business and the retail auto
parts business, which was sold in October 1999. Also
within this category are other sales, income and
expense not attributable to a reportable segment,
including a portion of corporate expense.
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Sales between reportable segments were insig-
nificant. Intercompany interest income on cash .
advances to the financial services companies is
included in All Other and was $14.3, $19.8 and
$11.9 for 2001, 2000 and 1999. Geographic revenues
from external customers are presented based on the
country of the customer.

PACCAR evaluates the performance of its Truck
segment based on operating profits, which excludes
investment income, other income and expense,
income taxes and the LIFO reserve. The Financial
Services segment’s performance is evaluated based
on income before income taxes.

Geographic Area Data 2001 2000 1999
Revenues:
United States $ 2,784.4 $4,478.3 $5,719.8
Europe 2,112.6  2,153.9 2,137.5
Other _ 1,191.8 1,287.7 1,163.7

$ 6,088.8 $7,919.9 $9,021.0

Long-lived assets:
Property, plant and equipment, net
United States $ 400.0 $ 4213 $ 397.9
The Netherlands 172.8 185.6 179.7
Canada 79.7 88.0 94.8
Other 176.3 187.7 202.9

$ 828.8 $ 882.6 $ 8753

Goodwill and other, net
The Netherlands $ 76.8 $ 86.0 $ 952
Other 1.0 1.0 1.2

$ 778 % 870 8§ 964

Equipment on lease, net
United Kingdom $ 1754 $ 133.0 $ 59.0

Mexico _ 62.8 59.5 29.4
France 89.6 57.8 36.7
United States 52.0 56.3 42.1
Other 155.¢ 30.9 63.2

$ 5348 $ 3975 $§ 230.4

Business Segment Data 2001 2000

1999
Net sales and revenues:
. Truck $5,573.6 $7,382.4 $8,412.9
All other 56.4 58.4 235.3
5,630.0 7,440.8 8,648.2
Financial Services  458.8 479.1 372.8
$6,088.8 $7,919.9 $9,021.0
Income before taxes:
Truck $ 189.1 $ 512.8 $ 7595
All other (4.1) 41.0 14.7
185.0 553.8 774.2
Financial Services 35.0 76.4 77.8
Gain on sale of
subsidiary 33.2
Investment income 35.3 34.9 38.0
$ 2553 $§ 665.1 $ 923.2
Depreciation and amortization:
Truck $ 1275 $ 1148 $ 107.2
Financial Services 35.4 27.2 19.2
All other 17.0 13,5 20.5
$ 1799 $§ 1555 $ 146.9
Expenditures for long-lived assets:
Truck $ 201.2 $ 252.8 $ 325.7
Financial Services 93.6 78.2 53.1
Other 14.5 36.9 27.3
$ 309.3-$ 367.9 $ 406.1
Segment assets:
Truck $1,990.5 $2,118.3 $2,158.3
Other 141.8 128.7 150.0
Cash and marketable ‘
securities 1,023.1 909.7 1,042.2
- 3,155.4 3,156.7 3,350.5
Financial Services 4,758.5 5,114.2 4,582.5
$7,913.9 $8,270.9 $7,933.0

PACCAR Inc and Subsidiaries




REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PACCAR Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PACCAR Inc and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity,
comprehensive-income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of PACCAR Inc and subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
effective January 1, 2001,

Samet + LLp
Seattle, Washington _
February 21, 2002

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(millions except per share data)

Truck and Other Net Sales

and Revenues $5,630.0 $7,440.8 $8,648.2 $7,577.7 $6,479.4
Financial Services Revenue 458.8 479.1 372.8 317.1 284.3
Total Revenues 6,088.8 7,919.9 9,021.0 7,894.8 6,763.7
Net Income 173.6 441.8 583.6 416.8 344.6
Net Income Per Share:

Basic 2.27 5.76 7.46 5.34 4.43

Diluted 2.26 5.73 7.41 5.30 4.41

Cash Dividends Declared 1.45 2.20 2.40 2.20 2.075
Total Assets:

Truck and Other 3,155.4 3,156.7 3,350.5 3,159.6 2,605.5

Financial Services 4,758.5 5,114.2 4,582.5 3,635.2 2,993.9
Truck and Other Long-Term Debt 40.7 124.7 182.2 204.3 236.6
Financial Services Debt 3,426.2 3,803.9 3,405.7 2,724.7 2,184.4
Stockholders’ Equity $2,252.6 $2,249.1 $2,110.6 $1,764.2 $1,497.8

In 1999 and 1997, net income included $17.5 and $35.0, respectively, for after-tax gains on sales of subsidiaries.




QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

. . QUARTER
FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

2001 i . (millions except per share data)
Truck and Other Net Sales and Revenues $1,407.8 $1,406.9 $1,389.2  $1,426.1
Truck and Other Gross Profit (Before SG&A and Interest) 140.8 131.7 133.3 151.6
Financial Services Revenues 120.4 116.4 111.9 i10.1
Financial Services Gross Profit (Before SG&A) 45.0 45.6 47.1 45.8
Net Income 44.3 39.5 39.4 50.4
Net Income Per Share (1): ‘

Basic $ 58 $ 52 $ 520§ 66

Diluted .58 .51 .51 .65
2000 ‘ i
Truck and Other Net Sales and Revenues $2,222.8 $2,024.7 $1,648.3- $1,545.0
Truck and Other Gross Profit (Before SG&A and Interest) 3245 265.3 185.0 165.2
Financial Services Revenues 108.5 116.9 - 126.7 127.0
Financial Services Gross Profit (Before SG&A) 42.0 433 46.8 46.6
Net Income 154.9 131.1 93.1 62.7
Net Income Per Share (1): '

Basic $ 199 $ 1.72 $ 122 % .82

Diluted ©1.98 1.71 1.21 .82

(1) The sum of quarterly per share amounts may not equal per share amounts reported for year-to-date
periods. This is due to changes in the number of weighted shares outstanding and the effects of rounding

for each period.

COMMON STOCEK MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Common stock of the Company is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol PCAR. The table
below reflects the range of trading prices as reported by Nasdaq and cash dividends declared. There were 2,489

record holders of the common stock at December 31, 2001.

2001 CASH DIVIDENDS STOCK PRICE

2000 CASH DIVIDENDS STOCK PRICE
QUARTER DECLARED HIGH LOW QUARTER DECLARED HIGH LOW
First $ .30 $54.63 $42.88 First $ .30 $50.00  $39.75
Second 30 52.32 42.81 Second .30 54.25 39.50
Third ‘ 30 65.05 42.75 Third .30 45.75 36.50
Fourth .30 69.28 - 47.20 " Fourth .30 © 51.81 36.25
Year-End Extra .25 Year-End Extra 1.00

The Company expects to continue paying regular cash dividends, although there is no assurance as to future
dividends because they are dependent upon future earnings, capital requirements and financial conditions.
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MARERET RISKS AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

(currencies in millions)

In the normal course of business, PACCAR holds or issues various financial instruments which expose the
Company to market risk associated with market currency exchange rates and interest rates. Policies and
procedures have been established by the Company to manage these market risks through the use of various
derivative financial instruments. The Company does not engage in derivatives trading, market-making or
other speculative activities.

Interest Rate Risks
See Note O for a description of the Company’s exposure to interest rate risks.
The following is a sensitivity analysis for the Company’s derivatives and other financial instruments which have
interest rate risk. These instruments are held for other than trading purposes. The gains or losses in the follow-
ing table represent the changes in the financial instruments’ fair values which would result from a 100 basis
point increase of the current market rates at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
k Fair Value Gains (Losses)

2001 2000
CONSOLIDATED:
Assets
Cash equivalents and marketable securities $ (7.3) $ (6.1)
TRUCK AND OTHER:
Liabilities
Borrowings and related swaps:
Long-term debt 1.1 2.2
Interest rate swaps related to commercial paper classified as long-term debt 7 9
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Assets
Retail notes, contracts and wholesale financing, net of unearned interest,
less allowance for losses ‘ (33.1) (37.0)
Liabilities
Debt 3.7 6.8
Interest rate swaps related to financial services debt 23.0 27.9
Total . $(11.9) $ (5.3)
Currency Risks

See Note O for a description of the Company’s exposure to currency risks.
The following foreign exchange forward contracts were held by the Company related to certain currency
exposures. Substantially all contracts have maturity dates of less than one year. The notional amounts and
fair values follow:

Average Notional Fair Value

Contractual Rate* Amount Gains (Losses)
December 31, 2001
Buy Euro / Sell British Pound 623 $ 42.9 $ (.8)
Buy Euro / Sell Swiss Franc 1.473 1.5
Buy Euro / Sell Czecheslovakian Koruna 32.397 2.8
Buy Euro / Sell Hungarian Forint 247.873 1.5
Buy Euro / Seli Polish Zloty 3.639 5.0 - (.2)
Buy U.S. Dollar / Sell Euro 1.119 12.8
Buy U.S. Dollar / Sell British Pound .689 95.7 (.2)
Buy U.S. Dollar / Sell Canadian Dollar 1.586 5.5
Total $167.7 $(1.2)
December 31, 2000 ‘
Buy Euro / Sell U.S. Dollar .879 $ 9.6 $ 5
Buy Euro / Sell British Pound .598 20.5 _ .8
Buy U.S. Dollar / Sell Canadian Dollar 1.532 7.7 1)
Total ‘ $37.8 $ 1.2

*Stated in terms of selling currency
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DIVISIONS

AND SUBSIDIARIES

TRUCKS

Kenworth Truck Company
Division Headquarters:
10630 N.E. 38th Place
Kirkland, Washington 98033

Factories:
Chillicothe, Ohio
Renton, Washington

Peterbilt

Motors Company
Division Headquarters:
1700 Woodbrook Street
Denton, Texas 76205

Factortes:
Denton, Texas
Madison, Tennessee

PACCAR of Canada Ltd.
Markborough Place

6711 Mississauga Road N.
Mississauga, Ontario
L5N 4J8 Canada

Factory:
Ste. Therese, Quebec

Canadian Kenworth
Company

Division Headquarters:
Markborough Place

6711 Mississauga Road N.
Mississauga, Ontario
L5N 4J8 Canada

Peterbilt of Canada
Division Headquarters:
108 Summerlea Road
Brampton, Ontario
L6T 4X3 Canada

DAF Trucks N.V.

Hugo van der Goeslaan 1
P.O. Box 90065

5600 PT Eindhoven

The Netherlands

Factories:
Eindhoven,

The Netherlands
Westerlo, Belgium

Leyland Trucks Ltd.
Croston Road
Leyland, Preston
Lancs PR5 3LZ
United Kingdom

Factory:
Leyland, Lancashire

Kenworth Méxicana,
S.A.de C.V.
Kilometro 10.5

Carretera a San Luis
Mexicali, Baja California’
Mexico

Factory:
Mexicali, Baja California

PACCAR

Australia Pty. Ltd.
Kenworth Trucks

64 Canterbury Road
Bayswater, Victoria 3153
Australia

Factory:
Bayswater, Victoria

PACCAR U.K. Ltd.
Foden Trucks

Moss Lane, Sandbach
Cheshire CW11 3YW
United Kingdom

TRUCK PARTS
AND SUPPLIES

PACCAR Parts

Division Headquarters:
750 Houser Way N.
Renton, Washington 98055

Dynacraft

Division Headquarters:
650 Milwaukee Avenue N.
Algona, Washington 98001

WINCHES

PACCAR Winch Division
Division Headquarters:
800 E. Dallas Street
Broken Arrow, Oklahoma
74012

Factories:
Broken Arrow, Oklahoma
Okmulgee, Oklahoma

PRODUCT TESTING,
RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

PACCAR Technical Center
Division Headquarters:
12479 Farm to Market Road
Mount Vernon, Washington
98273

DAF Trucks Test Centre
Weverspad 2

5491 RL St. Oedenrode
The Netherlands

PACCAR FINANCIAL
SERVICES GROUP

PACCAR Financial Corp.
PACCAR Building

777 106th Avenue N.E.
Bellevue, Washington 98004

PACCAR Financial
Europe B.V.

Hugo van der Goeslaan 1
P.O. Box 90065

5600 PT Eindhoven

The Netherlands

PACCAR Capital
México S.A.de C.V,
Kilometro 10.5

Carretera a San Luis
Mexicali, Baja California
Mexico

PacLease Méxicana

S.A.de C.V.

Kilometro 10.5
Carretera a San Luis

Mexicali, Baja California

Mexico

PACCAR Financial
Services Ltd.
Markborough Place

6711 Mississauga Road N.
Mississauga, Ontario

L5N 4]J8 Canada

PACCAR Financial

Pty. Ltd.

64 Canterbury Road
Bayswater, Victoria 3153
Australia

PACCAR Financial Limited
Moss Lane, Sandbach
Cheshire CW11 3YW
United Kingdom

PACCAR Leasing Company
Division of PACCAR
Financial Corp.

PACCAR Building

777 106th Avenue N.E.
Bellevue, Washington 98004

EXPORT SALES

PACCAR International
Division Headquarters:
PACCAR Building

777 106th Avenue N.E.
Bellevue, Washington 98004

Offices:
Beijing, People’s Republic
of China
Jakarta, Indonesia
Johannesburg, Republic
of South Africa
Manama, Bahrain
Miami, Florida
Sandbach, United Kingdom
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Corporate Offices
PACCAR Building

777 106th Avenue N.E.
Bellevue, Washington
98004

Malling Address

P.O. Bex 1518
Bellevue, Washington
98009

Telephone
(425) 468-7400

Poceimfle
(423) 468-8216

Homepage
hitps/iwww.paccar.com

Stock Transfer

and Dividend
Dispersing Agemnt
Wells Pargo Bank
Minnesota, N.A,
Sharcowner Services
P.O. Box 648354

$t. Paul, Minnesota
35164-0854

(800) 468-9716
(651) 450-4064
www.wellsfarge.com/com/
shareowner_services

PACCAR’s sramsfer agent
mainiains the company’s
shareholder records, issues
stock certifieates and
diseribuses dividends and
IRS Form 1099, Requesis
comeerning these masters
should be divecied to
Wells Fargo.

Online Delivery of

Annual Report and Proxy
Statement

PACCAR’s 2001 Annual
Report and the 2002 Proxy
Statement are available on
PACCAR’s Web site at www,
pacear.com/corp/finanee.asp

Reglstered stockholders
can sign up te recelve
future proxy statements
and annval reports in
electronle format, instead
of recelving paper
decuments, beginning in
2003 by visiting
WWW.eCconsent.com/pear/

Stockholders whe hold
PACCAR stock in street
name may [nquire of thefir
bank or broker about the
availability of electronie
delivery of 2003 annuel
meeting documents.

PACCAR, Kenworth,
Peterbilt, Careo,
Dynacraft, Gearmatie,
Braden, DAB, Poden,
Leyland and Paclease
are (rademarks owned
by PACCAR Ine and
its subsidiaries,

Independent Avditors
Ermst & Young LLP
Seattle, Washington

SBC Ferm 10-K
PACCAR’s annual report
to the Securities and
Exchange Commission
will be furnished to
stockholders on request
to the Corporate
Seeretary, PACCAR Ine,
RO, Box 1318, Bellevue,
Washington 98009,

Annua] Stockhelders’
Mesting

Aprfl 30, 2002, 16530 a.m.
Meydenbauer Center
11100 N.E. Sixth Street
Bellevue, Washington
98004

An Baual Opportumnity
Bmployer

d

This report wes printed
on recyeled papes







